
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, July 7, 2015 
 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2015 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/07/2015 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, July 7, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

TOWN HALL 
155 F Road, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)  Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)  Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Consideration for Renewal of Hurricane Disaster Debris Removal and Monitoring 
Agreements. 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2015 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/07/2015 
 

 
4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 

 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Lung Chiu, Chair of Financial Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) to provide 
May FY 2015 Financial Report. 

 
 

6. ORDINANCES  
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04:  PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND/FINAL 
READING   (Date Changes for the 2016 Municipal Election) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, SCHEDULING THE DATE OF THE TOWN’S 2016 GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 101.75, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
MARCH 15, 2016 TO COINCIDE WITH THE 2016 PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE 
PRIMARY; PROVIDING FOR THE QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR THE 2016 MUNICIPAL 
GENERAL ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-05:  PUBLIC HEARING/SECOND/FINAL 

READING (Okeechobee Boulevard Moratorium Extension) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2014-08, WHICH IMPOSED A 
MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND 
USE MAP AMENDMENTS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO COMMERCIAL 
LAND USES ON PROPERTIES FRONTING ON OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN, TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM UNTIL 
DECEMBER 31, 2015 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION OF APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS 
TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
c. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-06:  PUBLIC HEARING/FIRST READING 

(ULDC Agricultural Changes) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE  TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT 
CODE; AMENDING PART I, ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS,” 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
TERMS”, SECTION 10-015, ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS,” TO REVISE THE DEFINITION 

2 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2015 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/07/2015 
 

OF AGRICULTURE, BONA FIDE, AND ADD THE DEFINITION OF AGRICULTURE, 
HOBBYIST; TO AMEND ARTICLE 20 ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING  DISTRICTS” 
PART II, ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS” SECTION 20-015 “PERMITTED USES”; TO 
REVISE PART III, ENTITLED “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 65 
ENTITLED “AGRICULTURAL USES,” SECTION 65 ENTITLED “PURPOSE AND 
INTENT, SECTION 65-010 ENTITLED “DETERMINATION OF VALID AGRICULTURAL 
USE”, AND SECTION 65-015, ENTITLED “NONAGRICULTURAL USES AND 
STRUCTURES WITH A BONAFIDE AGRICULTURAL USE”; PROVIDING FOR INTENT 
OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

7. RESOLUTIONS  
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-20: (1st Amendment to B Road Improvement 
Agreement) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO B ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
LOXAHATCHEE EQUESTRIAN PARTNERS AND SOLAR SPORTSYSTEMS, INC., 
ATLANTIC LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC, AND PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE; 
AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE TOWN OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE THE 
AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
b. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-21:  (Council to ratify Anita Kane as Councilman 

Goltzené’s appointment to the Finance Audit and Advisory Committee (FAAC) 
replacing Virginia Standish who has submitted her resignation). 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, APPOINTING ANITA KANE TO REPLACE AND SERVE THE 
REMAINING TERM OF VIRGINIA STANDISH AS A VOTING MEMBER OF THE 
FINANCE ADVISORY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues 

concerning the Town. 

3 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, JULY 7, 2015 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
07/07/2015 
 

 
b. Palm Beach County Fire Rescue May, 2015  Response Time Report (on file) 

 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS  
 

a. Forfeiture Hearing contemplated under the charter.  
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Town Management Services Request for Proposal (RFP). 
 

b. Discussion, and direction, on the Eighth Addendum to the Law Enforcement 
Service Agreement between The Town of Loxahatchee Groves and Ric L. 
Bradshaw, Sheriff of Palm Beach County Florida; and also potential solutions 
to immediate law enforcement coverage within the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves.  
 

c. Discussion, and direction, on an Interlocal Agreements (ILA) with the 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District for accessory road maintenance 
services. 
 
    

11. COUNCIL REPORTS - NONE 
 
 

12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 21, 2015. 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



I

Con

Atto

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

sent Agenda

 

orney Invoice

 

 

5 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Disaster Removal Agreements 

15 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082915.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 1 - 

RENEWAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

AND 

BERGERON EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC.  
 

DISASTER RECOVERY SERVICES 

RFQ NO. 2011-03 

This Renewal Agreement, is made and entered into the ___ day of ________, 2015, by 
and between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, a Florida municipal corporation ("TOWN"), and 
BERGERON EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC. (“CONTRACTOR") for Disaster Recovery 
Services ("Renewal Agreement").  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the TOWN, solicited proposals from firms to perform Emergency Push &  
Storm Debris Collection and Disposal from TOWN Rights-of-Way Service (“Services”); and  

WHEREAS, Proposals were evaluated by the Town Council; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council selected the CONTRACTOR to perform the services; 
and,  

WHEREAS, the TOWN and CONTRACTOR entered into an Agreement for Disaster 
Recovery Services on July 19, 2011; and,  

WHEREAS, the Initial Term of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services expired 
on November 30, 2012; and,  

WHEREAS, the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services provides for additional one 
(1) year terms (“Renewal Terms”) at the option of the TOWN Council; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Parties renewed the Agreement for one year renewal terms since the 
Initial Term; and  
 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has agreed to maintain the same prices during the 
Renewal Term as set forth in the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services; and,  

16 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082915.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 2 - 

 
WHEREAS, TOWN and CONTRACTOR desire to enter into a Renewal Agreement to 

renew the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services for a term from December 1, 2014, through 
November 30, 2015.    

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS 
HEREIN EXPRESSED AND THE FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF ALL SUCH 
COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

A. Pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services, the parties 
hereby agree to the exercise of the option to renew the Agreement for Disaster 
Recovery Services for one (1) additional year (Renewal Term). 
 

B. The Renewal Term shall be from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015. 
 
C. All terms, responsibilities and conditions of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery 

Services remain in full force and effect during the Renewal Term.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature. 
 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA  
 
 
ATTEST:     BY: ________________________________ 
              David Browning, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 
      DATED:___________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney  
 
 
BERGERON EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC. 
 
__________________________________   BY:________________________________ 
WITNESS       RONALD M. BERGERON, JR. 
        President 
__________________________________     
PRINT NAME 
       DATED:____________________________  
 
        
 
MDC 
 

17 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082911.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 1 - 

RENEWAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

AND 

C & C LOADER SERVICE, INC.  
 

DISASTER RECOVERY SERVICES 

RFQ NO. 2011-03 

This Renewal Agreement, is made and entered into the ___ day of ________, 2015, by 
and between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, a Florida municipal corporation ("TOWN"), and 
C & C LOADER SERVICE, INC. (“CONTRACTOR") for Disaster Recovery Services 
("Renewal Agreement").  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the TOWN, solicited proposals from firms to perform Emergency Push &  
Storm Debris Collection and Disposal from TOWN Rights-of-Way Service (“Services”); and  

WHEREAS, Proposals were evaluated by the Town Council; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council selected the CONTRACTOR to perform the services; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the TOWN and CONTRACTOR entered into an Agreement for Disaster 
Recovery Services on July 19, 2011; and,  

WHEREAS, the Initial Term of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services expired 
on November 30, 2012; and,  

WHEREAS, the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services provides for additional one 
(1) year terms (“Renewal Terms”) at the option of the TOWN Council; and,  

WHEREAS, the Parties renewed the Agreement for one year terms since the Initial 
Term; and   
 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has agreed to maintain the same prices during the 
Renewal Term as set forth in the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services; and,  

18 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082911.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, TOWN and CONTRACTOR desire to enter into a Renewal Agreement to 
renew the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services for a term from December 1, 2014, through 
November 30, 2015.    

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS 
HEREIN EXPRESSED AND THE FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF ALL SUCH 
COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

A. Pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery Services, the parties 
hereby agree to the exercise of the option to renew the Agreement for Disaster 
Recovery Services for one (1) additional year (Renewal Term). 
 

B. The Renewal Term shall be from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015. 
 
C. All terms, responsibilities and conditions of the Agreement for Disaster Recovery 

Services remain in full force and effect during the Renewal Term.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature. 
 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA  
 
 
ATTEST:     BY: ________________________________ 
              David Browning, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 
      DATED:___________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney  
 
 
C & C LOADER SERVICE, INC. 
 
__________________________________   BY:________________________________ 
WITNESS       JOHN CHOQUETTE,  
        President 
__________________________________     
PRINT NAME 
       DATED:____________________________  
 
        
 
MDC 
 
 

19 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082914.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 1 - 

RENEWAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

AND 

O’BRIEN’S RESPONSE MANAGEMENT, LLC  
 

DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

RFQ NO. 2011-04 

This Renewal Agreement, is made and entered into the ___ day of ________, 2015, by 
and between the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, a Florida municipal corporation ("TOWN"), and 
O’BRIEN’S RESPONSE MANAGEMENT, LLC (“CONTRACTOR") for Disaster Debris 
Monitoring Services ("Renewal Agreement").  

 
WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the TOWN, solicited proposals from firms to perform Disaster Debris 
Monitoring Services (“Services”); and  

WHEREAS, Proposals were evaluated by the Town Council; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council selected the CONTRACTOR to perform the services; 
and  

WHEREAS, the TOWN and CONTRACTOR entered into a Disaster Debris Monitoring 
Services Agreement (“Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement”) on August 4, 2011; 
and,  

WHEREAS, the Initial Term of the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement 
expired on November 30, 2012; and,  

WHEREAS, the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement provides for additional 
one (1) year terms (“Renewal Terms”) at the option of the TOWN Council; and,  

WHEREAS, the Parties renewed the Agreement for one year terms since the Initial 
Term; and  
 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has agreed to maintain the same prices during the 
Renewal Term as set forth in the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement; and,  

 
 

20 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082914.1 1574-0702400 }  
 - 2 - 

WHEREAS, TOWN and CONTRACTOR desire to enter into a Renewal Agreement to 
renew the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement for a term from December 1, 2014, 
through November 30, 2015.    

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS 
HEREIN EXPRESSED AND THE FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE OF ALL SUCH 
COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  

A. Pursuant to Section 2.2 of the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services Agreement, the 
parties hereby agree to the exercise of the option to renew the Disaster Debris 
Monitoring Services Agreement for one (1) additional year (Renewal Term). 
 

B. The Renewal Term shall be from December 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015. 
 
C. All terms, responsibilities and conditions of the Disaster Debris Monitoring Services 

Agreement remain in full force and effect during the Renewal Term.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 
on the respective dates under each signature. 
 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA  
 
 
ATTEST:     BY: ________________________________ 
              David Browning, Mayor 
_________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 
      DATED:___________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney  
 
 
O’BRIEN’S RESPONSE MANAGEMENT, LLC 
 
__________________________________   BY:________________________________ 
WITNESS      NAME:_____________________________   
       TITLE:_____________________________ 
__________________________________     
PRINT NAME 
       DATED:____________________________  
 
        
 
MDC 
 
 

21 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 5.a. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Financials Ending May 30, 2015 
 

22 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-311-100-000 Ad Valorem Taxes 5,620                   215,044          -                     217,931                 (2,887)                       99%
Ad Valorem Taxes Subtotal 5,620                 215,044        -                   217,931               (2,887)                     99%

001-314-100-000 Electric Utility Tax 19,567                 136,350          -                     203,000                 (66,650)                    67%
001-315-100-000 Communications Services 7,466                   54,421             -                     103,352                 (48,931)                    53%
001-316-200-000 County Occupational License 494                      5,865               -                     5,000                     865                           117%

Local Taxes Subtotal 27,528               196,636        -                   311,352               (114,716)                63%

001-323-100-000 FPL Franchise Fee -                       100,889          -                     185,000                 (84,111)                    55%
001-323-125-000 Haulers License Fee -                       1,525               -                     -                         1,525                        NA
001-323-300-000 PBC Water Utility Franchise 516                      4,358               -                     5,050                     (692)                          86%
001-329-100-000 Planning & Zoning Permit 1,342                   5,970               -                     2,000                     3,970                        298%

Permits, Franchise Fees & Special Subtotal 1,858                 112,742        -                   192,050               (79,308)                  59%

001-335-120-000 State Revenue Sharing 6,608                   52,922             -                     90,689                   (37,767)                    58%
001-335-180-000 Half Cent Sales Tax 23,357                 149,484          -                     243,375                 (93,891)                    61%

Intergovernmentall Revenue Subtotal 29,965               202,406        -                   334,064               (131,658)                61%

001-341-000-000 General Government Charges 310                      2,821               -                     4,000                     (1,180)                       71%
001-343-349-000 Cost Recovery Fees 5,846                   48,098             -                     60,000                   (11,902)                    80%

Charges for Services Subtotal 6,156                 50,918           -                   64,000                 (13,082)                  80%

001-351-100-000 Court Fines -                       -                  -                   -                         -                            
001-354-100-000 Code Enforcement Fines 5,700                   6,409               -                     300                        6,109                        2136%

Code Enforcement Fines Subtotal 5,700                 6,409             -                   300                      6,109                      2136%

001-361-100-000 Interest -                       33                    -                     200                        (167)                          17%
001-369-000-000 Other Misc Income 150                      150                  -                     1,000                     (850)                          15%

Other Misc Revenue Subtotal 150                    183                -                   1,200                   (1,017)                     15%

001-381-305-000 Transfer from CIP Fund 29,380               434,708        -                   1,000,000            (565,292)                43%
001-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance* -                       -                  -                     (25,000)                  25,000                    0%

Other Non-operating Sources Subotal 29,380               434,708        -                   975,000               (540,292)                45%

Grand Total Revenue 106,357             1,219,046     -                   2,095,897            (876,851)                58%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

General Fund
Revenues

UMSG,LLC
Page 11 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 37 of 186

23 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-511-310-000 Professional Services -                       -                  -                     650                        650                           0%
001-511-400-000 Travel -                       -                  -                     3,000                     3,000                        0%
001-511-492-000 Other Operating Expenses -                       1,574               -                     1,500                     (74)                            105%
001-511-499-000 Other Current Charges - Council Reimbursement 2,500                   17,500             -                     30,000                   12,500                      58%
001-511-500-000 Education & Training -                       48                    -                     1,000                     952                           5%
001-511-510-000 Office Supplies 55                        191                  -                     300                        109                           64%
001-511-520-000 Operating Supplies -                       -                  -                     300                        300                           0%
001-511-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       1,635               -                     1,935                     300                           85%
001-511-820-000 Special Events/Contributions (232)                     6,086               -                     10,000                   3,914                        61%

Legislative Total 2,323                 27,034           -                   48,685                 21,651                    56%

001-512-340-000 Other Services 22,471                 179,769          -                     269,653                 89,884                      67%
001-512-400-000 Travel 125                      585                  -                     1,500                     915                           39%
001-512-420-000 Postage & Freight - NEW 62                        345                  -                     1,000                     655                           34%
001-512-490-000 Legal Advertising (802)                     (802)                -                     500                        1,302                        -160%
001-512-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 36                        147                  -                     944                        797                           16%
001-512-493-000 Election Expense -                       15,637             -                     8,010                     (7,627)                       195%
001-512-510-000 Office Supplies 5,092                   14,249             -                     12,000                   (2,249)                       119%
001-512-540-000 Books, Publications & Subscriptions -                       11                    -                     570                        559                           2%

Executive Total 26,985               209,942        -                   294,177               84,235                    71%

001-513-320-000 Accounting and Auditing -                       2,500               -                     18,000                   15,500                      14%
001-513-470-000 Printing and Binding -                       -                  -                     1,751                     1,751                        0%
001-513-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                  -                     2,000                     2,000                        0%
001-513-491-000 Computer Services -                       5,883               -                     11,919                   6,036                        49%

Financial & Administrative Total -                     8,383             -                   33,670                 25,287                    25%

001-514-310-000 Professional Services 9,234                   53,977             -                     90,000                   36,023                      60%
Legal Total 9,234                 53,977           -                   90,000                 36,023                    60%

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 12 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 38 of 186

24 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

001-515-310-000 Professional Services 550                      16,465.00$     -                     40,000                   23,535                      41%
001-515-340-000 Other Services 6,725                   53,801.36$     -                     80,702                   26,901                      67%
001-515-343-000 Planning & Zoning Contract 1,594                   9,300.00$       -                     20,000                   10,700                      47%
001-515-349-000 Cost Recovery Expenditure 5,846                   69,411.03$     -                     60,000                   (9,411)                       116%
001-515-490-000 Legal Advertising - NEW 722                      6,023.20$       -                     10,000                   3,977                        60%

Comprehensive Planning & Zoning Total 15,438               155,001        -                   210,702               55,701                    74%

001-519-315-000 Special Magistrate 1,239                   4,622               -                     16,000                   11,378                      29%
001-519-340-000 Other Services 200                      200                  -                     3,000                     2,800                        7%
001-519-354-000 Code Compliance 2,768                   20,623             -                     36,000                   15,377                      57%
001-519-410-000 Communications Services 813                      3,848               -                     6,100                     2,252                        63%
001-519-420-000 Building Utilities 345                      345                  -                     -                         (345)                          NA
001-519-440-000 Rentals and Leases 935                      14,693             -                     34,783                   20,090                      42%
001-519-450-000 Insurance -                       1,370               -                     18,000                   16,630                      8%
001-519-460-000 Repair & Maint - Building 3,536                   12,459             -                     2,100                     (10,359)                    593%
001-519-490-000 Computer Repair -                       896                  -                     5,500                     4,604                        16%
001-519-491-000 Computer Services 77                        2,189               -                     7,292                     5,103                        30%
001-519-492-000 Other Operating Expenses 77                        142                  -                     -                         (142)                          NA
001-519-494-000 Inspector General Office -                       -                  -                     5,280                     5,280                        0%
001-519-610-000 Land Acquisition 442                      27,414             27,000                   (414)                          102%
001-519-620-000 Chamber of Commerce Property 18,192                 483,008          465,000                 (18,008)                    104%
001-519-820-000 Loxahatchee Groves CERT 165                      375                  -                     2,000                     1,625                        19%
001-519-990-000 Contingency -                       -                  -                     15,524                   15,524                      0%
001-519-998-000 Transfer To Fund Balance -                       -                  -                     480,500                 480,500                    0%

Other Governmental Services Total 28,788               572,184        -                   1,124,079            551,895                  51%

001-521-341-000 Professional Services-PBSO 23,590                 191,789          -                     283,084                 91,295                      68%
001-521-342-000 Contractual-ADDL PBSO -                       -                  -                     10,500                   10,500                      0%

Law Enforcement Total 23,590               191,789        -                   293,584               101,795                  65%

001-539-310-000 Other Services -                       -                  -                     -                         -                            
001-539-340-000 Professional Services -                       736                  -                     1,000                     264                           74%

Public Works Total -                     736                -                   1,000                   264                         74%

Grand Total Expenditure 106,357             1,219,046     -                   2,095,897            876,851                  58%

Net Revenue (0)                       0                    -                   -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

General Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 13 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 39 of 186

25 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-312-410-000 1st Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 6 cent) 23,606                 150,412          -                     250,858                 (100,446)                  60%
101-312-420-000 2nd Local Option Fuel Tax (1 to 5 cent) 10,700                 70,977             -                     117,768                 (46,791)                    60%
101-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                  -                     412,423                 (412,423)                  0%

Total Revenue 34,306               221,389        -                   781,049               (559,660)                28%
Represents consumption of fund balance.  This is not true revenue by definition or reflected in GL in transactions

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

101-539-340-000 Other Services -                       75                    
101-541-467-000 Traffic Control Signs (6 ct) Maint. -                       4,336               -                     10,000                   5,664                        43%
101-541-468-000 Non-District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       28,347             -                     102,059                 73,712                      28%
101-541-469-000 District Roads (6 ct) Maint. -                       1,951               -                     93,738                   91,787                      2%
101-541-632-000 Special Projects (6 cent) -                       -                  -                     60,000                   60,000                      0%
101-541-920-000 Transfer to Capital Projects -                       -                  -                     515,252                 515,252                    0%

Total Expenditure -                     34,709           -                   781,049               746,415                  4%

Net Revenue 34,306               186,680        -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

Transportation Fund
Revenues

Transportation Fund
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 14 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 40 of 186

26 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-363-991-000 Contributions from Transportation Fund -                       -                  -                     555,252                 (555,252)                  0%
305-399-000-000 Transfer from Fund Balance -                       -                  -                     1,000,000              (1,000,000)               0%

Total Revenue -                     -                -                   1,555,252            (1,555,252)             0%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

305-541-610-000 Surveying Town Roads -                       -                  -                     90,374                   90,374                      0%
305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light -                       -                  -                     290,944                 290,944                    0%
305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects -                       -                  -                     25,000                   25,000                      0%
305-541-650-000 Trails -                       -                  -                     120,000                 120,000                    0%
305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD -                       -                  -                     28,934                   28,934                      0%
305-581-001-000 Interfund Transfer Out To GF -                     -                -                   1,000,000            1,000,000               0%

Total Expenditure -                     -                -                   1,555,252            1,555,252               0%

Net Revenue -                     -                -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

Capital Improvement Program
Revenues

Capital Improvement Program
Expenditures

UMSG,LLC
Page 15 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 41 of 186

27 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67% Elapsed

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-325-205-000 Solid Waste Assessments 9,188                   413,181          -                     431,846                 (18,665)                    96%
405-325-206-000 Discount Fees -                       (13,550)           -                     (11,660)                  (1,890)                       116%
405-343-120-000 SWA Recycling Income 620                      2,991               -                     6,700                     (3,709)                       45%
405-361-100-000 Interest -                       2,254               -                     -                         2,254                        NA
405-363-990-000 Contributions from General Fund -                       -                  -                     14,382                   (14,382)                    0%

Total Revenue 9,808                 404,877        -                   441,268               (36,392)                  92%

Account Number Account Month to Date Year to Date Encumbrance Annual Budget Annual Variance % Used

405-534-345-000 Contractual - Waste Over -                       12,548             -                     15,000                   2,453                        84%
405-534-346-000 PBC Administration Fee 1 82                        3,985               -                     4,318                     333                           92%
405-534-420-000 Postage & Freight -                       -                  -                     300                        300                           0%
405-534-434-000 Solid Waste Contractor 34,513                 232,618          -                     410,150                 177,532                    57%
405-534-436-000 Other Sanitation Service -                       3,100               -                     11,000                   7,900                        28%
405-534-490-000 Legal Advertising -                       -                  -                     500                        500                           0%

Total Expenditure 34,594               252,251        -                   441,268               189,017                  57%

Net Revenue (24,786)              152,626        -                       

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES
BUDGET VS ACTUAL
AS OF MAY 31, 2015

Solid Waste Fund
Revenues

Note:  YTD Fines credited to Service Provider invoicing - $8000.00

UMSG,LLC
Page 16 of 33

Corrected: 6/19/2015
2015-06-22 FAAC Agenda 42 of 186

28 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6.a. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2015-04 

Public Hearing/2nd and Final Reading 

(Date Changes for 2016 Municipal Election) 

 

 
 

29 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
 

{00079930.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, SCHEDULING THE DATE OF 
THE TOWN’S 2016 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION, PURSUANT 
TO SECTION 101.75, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO MARCH 15, 2016 TO 
COINCIDE WITH THE 2016 PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE 
PRIMARY; PROVIDING FOR THE QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR THE 
2016 MUNICIPAL GENERAL ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 101.75, Florida Statutes, provides authority for municipalities to 

move their elections to the same date as any statewide or countywide election by adopting an 

ordinance confirming the change in the election date and the qualifying period for the election; 

and, 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2015-5, Laws of Florida, amended Section 103.101, F.S. to 

schedule the Presidential Preference Primary on the third Tuesday in March in those years with a 

Presidential Preference Primary, which in 2016 is March 15, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections has advised that she cannot 

conduct municipal elections on their usual date of March 8, 2016 due to the Presidential 

Preference Primary being scheduled a week later on March 15, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority in Section 101.75, F.S., the Town Council desires 

to move its 2016 General Municipal Election from March 8, 2016 to March 15, 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections has further advised the 

Town that it must provide the candidates’ names for the March 2016 election on or before 

December 15, 2015; and 

30 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
 

{00079930.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 101.75, F.S., the Town will establish a qualifying 

period from noon on November 3, 2015 to noon on November 10, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council deems it to be in the best interests of the citizens and 

residents of the Town to move the date of the Town’s General Municipal Election and the 

qualifying period for the Town’s 2016 Municipal General Election.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2.  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, pursuant to 

the authority of §101.75, Florida Statutes, schedules the date of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves’ 

2016 General Municipal Election as March 15, 2016. 

Section 3. The Town Council hereby provides and sets the qualifying period for the 

2016 General Municipal Election shall be noon on Tuesday, November 3, 2015 through noon on 

Tuesday, November 10, 2015.  

Section 4.   All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.  

Section 5.    If any clause, section or other part of this Ordinance shall be held by any 

court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid 

part shall be considered as eliminated and in no way affecting the validity of the other provisions 

of this Ordinance. 

31 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-04 
 

{00079930.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

Section 6.    This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

32 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6.b. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2015-05 

Public Hearing/ Second and Final Reading 

(Okeechobee Boulevard Moratorium Extension) 

 

 

 
 

33 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00077830.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2014-
08, WHICH IMPOSED A MORATORIUM ON THE PROCESSING AND 
REVIEW OF APPLICATIONS FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, INCLUDING FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
AMENDMENTS AND TEXT AMENDMENTS, RELATING TO 
COMMERCIAL LAND USES ON PROPERTIES FRONTING ON 
OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD WITHIN THE CORPORATE 
BOUNDARIES OF THE TOWN, TO EXTEND THE MORATORIUM 
UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2015 TO ENABLE THE ADOPTION OF 
APPROPRIATE AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN’S COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on February 3, 2015, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2014-08, which 

imposed a moratorium until May 31, 2015, on the receipt and processing of applications for Land 

Use Applications and Text Amendments to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to commercial 

land uses on property fronting Okeechobee Boulevard to provide the Town with time to review the 

Comprehensive Plan; and,  

 WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance 2014-08, Town Administration, the Town 

Planner, and the Town Planning and Zoning Board (Land Planning Agency (LPA)), have worked 

diligently on reviewing the Town’s Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee; and,  

 WHEREAS, consideration and review of potential amendments to the Town 

Comprehensive Plan has not been completed and more time is required to develop and adopt such 

amendments; and,  

 WHEREAS, at its May 19, 2015, meeting, the Town Council received proposed 

amendments to the Town Comprehensive Plan relating to Okeechobee Boulevard, but requires 

34 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00077830.1 1574-0702400 }  
2 

more time to evaluate amendment options and to complete the adoption process; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that it is in the best interest of the Town, and its 

residents, to extend the moratorium to provide additional time to review the Town’s 

Comprehensive Plan and for the adoption of amendments to the Plan, in order to enhance the Plan’s 

consistency with the Town’s historical conditions and vision of remaining a rural area.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses, as well as those in Ordinance 2014-08, 

 are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of 

this Ordinance upon adoption hereof. 

 Section 2. Moratorium Extended.   Section 4 of Ordinance 2014-08, is amended to 

extend the moratorium until December 31, 2015, as follows:   

Period of Moratorium.   The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves 
herby declares that the moratorium shall be effective for the period through May 
31December 31, 2015, unless otherwise modified by the Town Council by 
ordinance. 
 

 Section 3. Except as amended herein, the provisions of Ordinance 2014-08 remain in 

full force and affect. 

 Section 4. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are repealed to 

the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 5. If any Section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be 

invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6.   This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

35 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

{00077830.1 1574-0702400 }  
3 

adoption. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
 FLORIDA 

    
 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel    
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
        
 

36 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6.c. 

ORDINANCES 

Ordinance No. 2015-06 

Public Hearing/First Reading 

(ULDC Agricultural Changes) 

 

 

 
 

37 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.c. 

MEETING DATE: 7/7/2015 

      
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
 

SUBJECT: Agriculture ULDC revisions  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Staff has prepared ULDC revisions to clarify the issue of bona fide agriculture 
within the Town   

 
Problem Solution:  Adopt ULDC revisions to make a clear distinction between uses that are bona fide 
agriculture and uses that are not.  Revisions to the following ULDC Sections are proposed:  Section 10-
015 “Definitions”; Section 20-015 “Permitted Uses” of the AR – Agricultural Residential district; and 
Article 65 “Agricultural Uses”. 

 
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  
Staff prepared a draft of proposed ULDC revisions which was presented to the Planning and Zoning 
Board (PZB) at its June 11, 2015 meeting. PZB reviewed the proposed revisions recommended approval   
with minor wording revisions by a 4 – 0 vote.   

  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
    
 Proposed Ordinance 2015-06 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  The proposed ordinance was funded by a Council work authorization. 
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Approval of Ordinance 2015-06 on First Reading. 

38 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 1 of 6 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-06 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE  
TOWN’S UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE; AMENDING 
PART I, ENTITLED “ADMINISTRATION AND DEFINITIONS,” 
ARTICLE 10 ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, 
AND CONSTRUCTION OF TERMS”, SECTION 10-015, 
ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS,” TO REVISE THE DEFINITION OF 
AGRICULTURE, BONA FIDE, AND ADD THE DEFINITION OF 
AGRICULTURE, HOBBYIST; TO AMEND ARTICLE 20 
ENTITLED “RESIDENTIAL ZONING  DISTRICTS” PART II, 
ENTITLED “ZONING DISTRICTS” SECTION 20-015 
“PERMITTED USES”; TO REVISE PART III, ENTITLED 
“SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 65 ENTITLED 
“AGRICULTURAL USES,” SECTION 65 ENTITLED “PURPOSE 
AND INTENT, SECTION 65-010 ENTITLED “DETERMINATION 
OF VALID AGRICULTURAL USE”, AND SECTION 65-015, 
ENTITLED “NONAGRICULTURAL USES AND STRUCTURES 
WITH A BONAFIDE AGRICULTURAL USE”; PROVIDING FOR 
INTENT OF THE TOWN TO COMPLY WITH THE STATE’S 
PREEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council directed Town Administration to review 

provisions of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) in order to clarify its 

meaning and intent; and,   

WHEREAS, pursuant to the direction of the Town Council, the Town 

Administration has reviewed the issue of agriculture, including consulting with the Palm 

Beach County Property Appraiser (PBCPA) and the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board 

(PZB) related to the regulation of agriculture; and,    

WHEREAS, The PZB, at its meeting on June 11, 2015, recommended approval 

of the proposed ULDC revisions. 

39 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 2 of 6 
 

WHEREAS, consistent with the direction of the Town Council, and based upon 

review of state regulations and guidance from PBCPA, the Town Administration has 

reviewed the provisions of the Town’s ULDC and recommends that certain provisions 

that specifically address agriculture be clarified to avoid any potential misinterpretation ; 

and  

WHEREAS, the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, believes it is in the best  

interest of the Town to amend the Town’s ULDC in order to clarify the issue of 

regulating agriculture.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and 

confirmed as being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance 

upon adoption hereof.      

Section 2. Part I, entitled “Administration and Definitions,” Article 10 

entitled “Definitions, Abbreviations, and Construction of Terms”, Section 10-015, 

entitled “Definitions,” of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, is amended as 

follows: 

Section 10-015. - Definitions.  

Agriculture, bona fide.   A business on a property that receives  has been assigned an 
Agricultural Use Code by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser and received a 
reduction in property tax  due to the use of part or of all of the property for the production 
of products as defined under "Agriculture" in Section 10-015. See Ch. 193.461 F.S. and 
Article 65 "Bona Fide Agricultural Uses" of this Unified Land Development Code.  

Agriculture, hobbyist. An agricultural activity that has not been assigned an Agricultural 
Use Code by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser and has not received a reduction 
in property tax.   

40 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.municode.com/library/fl/loxahatchee_groves/codes/unified_land_development_code?nodeId=PTIADDE_ART10DEABCOTE_S10-015DE


 Page 3 of 6 
 

Section 3. Part II, entitled “Zoning Districts,” Article 20 entitled “Residential 

Zoning Districts,” Section 20-015, entitled “Permitted Uses”, of the Town’s Unified Land 

Development Code, is amended as follows: 

Section 20-015. - Permitted uses.  

Plots located in the Agricultural Residential (AR) zoning districts may be used for the 

following specified uses.  

Principal  Uses Agricultural Residential (AR) 
Single Family Dwelling Permitted  
Mobile Home Permitted w/Special Exception Category B 
Public Schools Permitted 
Congregate Living Facility, Type I Permitted 
Non-Profit Community Recreational 
Facilities 

Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 

Essential Services Permitted 
Commercial Equestrian Operations Permitted  
Wholesale Nursery Permitted 
Retail Nursery Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Aviculture See Note 1 below 
Commercial Kennels Not Permitted 
Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to Article 80 
Feed Lots Not Permitted 
Commercial Animal Manure 
Management 

Not Permitted 

Commercial Chipping and Mulching Permitted subject to Article 80 
Rescued Animal Care Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Outdoor Events Permitted subject to Article 80 and to a Special 

Exception Category A   
Hobbyist Agriculture Permitted 
Bona Fide Agriculture Permitted 
Wireless Communication Facilities Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
Rodeo Events Permitted w/Special Exception Category A 
 
Note 1:  The regulation of exhibition or sale of wildlife and personal possession of 
wildlife are preempted by state law and regulated by the State of Florida.  See Sections 
379.3761 and 379.762, Florida Statutes and Florida Administrative Code Chapters 68A-
1.002 and 68A-6. 
 

 

41 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 4 of 6 
 

 Section 4. Part III, entitled “Supplemental Regulations,” Article 65 entitled 

“Agricultural Uses,” Sections 65-005, entitled “Purpose and Intent”, Section 65-010, 

entitled “Determination of Valid Agricultural Use”, and Section 65-015, entitled 

“Nonagricultural Uses and Structures on Properties with a Bona Fide Agricultural Use” 

of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code, are amended as follows: 

Section 65-005. - Purpose and intent.  

The purpose and intent of this article is to protect, and provide  confirm  regulatory relief for,  
bona fide reasonable agricultural activities conducted on farm land in the Town as consistent with 
the Florida Right to Farm Act (823.14, F.S.).  

Section 65-010. - Determination of valid  bona fide agricultural use.  

Any property owner who seeks the regulatory relief provided for an agricultural use as defined 
herein, must either provide documentation to the Town from the Palm Beach County Property 
Appraiser's Office demonstrating that the property is currently classified as agriculture assigned 
an agricultural Use Code pursuant to F.S. § 193.461, as may be amended from time to time,.  or 
as an alternative, demonstrate to the Town Council that the use is agricultural, as defined herein. 
Once documentation is provided, the Town shall maintain an on-going  may periodically update  
the record of such use using Palm Beach County Property Appraiser data  and assume in order to 
determine that each  a property continues to maintain its bona fide agricultural status. unless a 
claim is made otherwise. If a claim is made otherwise, the property owner shall demonstrate the 
use is agricultural as provided for in this section. Location of a property within the Agricultural 
Residential (AR) zoning district does not, in and of itself, assign bona fide  agriculture status to a 
property. 

Section 65-015. - Nonagricultural uses and structures on properties with a partial bona fide 
agricultural use.  

Nonagricultural uses and structures on properties with a valid bona fide agricultural use on a portion 
of the property shall not qualify for modifications or exceptions to the Code for that portion of the 
property not so designated based on bona fide agricultural status. unless specifically stated otherwise.  

Section 65-020 – Hobbyist agricultural uses and structures. 

Hobbyist agricultural uses and structures shall comply with the land clearing and land 
development regulations of this Code. 

 

42 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 5 of 6 
 

 

Section 5.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, and all Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 6.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 

person or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 

applications of this Ordinance that can be given affect without the invalid provision or 

application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 7.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Unified Land Development Code of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, that the 

Sections of this ordinance may be renumbered, re-lettered, and the word “Ordinance” 

may be changed to “Section”, “Article” or such other word or phrase in order to 

accomplish such intention.   

Section 13.  This Ordinance shall become effective as provided by law.   

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ________ 
DAY OF __________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, 
THIS ____ DAY OF _____________, 2015. 
 
          

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA 
ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
_________________________ Mayor David Browning 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 

____________________________________ 
Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel 

 
 

43 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Page 6 of 6 
 

____________________________________ 
Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
   
____________________________________ 
Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
____________________________________ 
Council Member Jim Rockett 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
 
 
_________________________________   
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Office of the Town Attorney                           
        
 
      

44 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.a. 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2015-20 

(1st Amendment to B Road Improvement Agreement) 

45 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00053309.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-20 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FIRST 
AMENDMENT TO B ROAD IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, LOXAHATCHEE 
EQUESTRIAN PARTNERS AND SOLAR SPORTSYSTEMS, INC., 
ATLANTIC LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC, AND PALM BEACH STATE 
COLLEGE; AUTHORIZING THE APPROPRIATE TOWN OFFICIALS 
TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, on February 17, 2015, the Town Council adopted Resolution 2015-08, to 

approve the B Road Improvement Agreement between Loxahatchee Equestrian Partners, LLC 

and Solar Sportsystems, Inc., Atlantic Land Investments, LLC., Palm Beach State College, and 

the Town; and,  

WHEREAS, Loxahatchee Equestrian Partners, LLC and Solar Sportsystems, Inc., 

Atlantic Land Investments, LLC., and Palm Beach State College, seek to amend the B Road 

Improvement Agreement solely as to the release of escrow funds relating to the Paved Section of 

B Road, a copy of such amendment is attached hereto; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves to approve the attached First Amendment to B Road Improvement Agreement.    

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

46 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00053309.1 1574-0702400 }  

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves approves the First 

Amendment to B Road Improvement Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and 

authorizes the appropriate Town Officials to execute same.   

Section 3.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

  
ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS 7TH DAY OF JULY, 2015.  

 
      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
     
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Jim Rockett 

47 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00053309.1 1574-0702400 }  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO B ROAD IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 

48 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WPB_ACTIVE 6402888.1  

FIRST AMENDMENT TO B ROAD IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO B ROAD IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT (the “First Amendment”) 

is made as of this ______ of _____________, 2015, by and between LOXAHATCHEE EQUESTRIAN 
PARTNERS, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“LEP”), SOLAR SPORTSYSTEMS, INC, a New York 
corporation (“SSI”) (collectively, LEP and SSI are referred to herein as “Solar Sports”), ATLANTIC LAND 
INVESTMENTS, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“ALI”), THE DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE, a body corporate created under Florida law (“PBSC”), and THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of 
the State of Florida (“Town”). Collectively, Solar Sports, ALI, PBSC, and the Town are referred to herein as 
the “Parties”. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain B Road Improvement Agreement with an effective 

date of March 24, 2015 (“Agreement”) (all initially capitalized terms used in this First Amendment shall have 
the meanings set forth in the Agreement); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to permit Gunster, Yoakley & Stewart, P.A. 

(“Escrow Agent”) to reimburse PBSC for payments it makes to Construction Manager pursuant to the 
Construction Management Agreement for the permitted components of the B Road Paved Section Project, 
rather than Escrow Agent making such payments directly to Construction Manager. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties hereby amend the Agreement as follows: 

 
1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this 

reference. 
 
2. Amendment.  Section 4.2, Release of Escrow Funds – Paved Section, of the Agreement 

is hereby amended to add the following to the end of such Section: 
 

“Alternatively, Escrow Agent shall, upon receipt of written approval from 
PBSC, Solar Sports and ALI, reimburse PBSC from the Escrow Funds for 
payments PBSC has made to Construction Manager pursuant to the 
Construction Management Agreement for the permitted components of 
the B Road Paved Section Project. In connection with the foregoing, and 
as a condition of such written approval from PBSC, Solar Sports and ALI 
described in the immediately preceding sentence, in addition to PBSC’s 
delivery of billing invoices as required under this Section 4.2, PBSC shall 
also deliver proof of payment by PBSC to Construction Manager pursuant 
to the Construction Management Agreement for the permitted 
components of the B Road Paved Section Project for which disbursement 
by Escrow Agent under this Section 4.2 is requested.” 

 
3. Miscellaneous.  In the event of any conflict between this First Amendment and the 

Agreement, this First Amendment shall control.  Except as otherwise provided in this First Amendment, the 
Agreement shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect and is reaffirmed for all purposes. This First 
Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all 
of which shall constitute a single agreement.  Delivery of executed signature pages hereof by facsimile or 
email transmission shall constitute effective and binding execution and delivery thereof. 

 
[Signature page follows] 

49 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WPB_ACTIVE 6402888.1 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this First Amendment has been executed by the Parties as of the date 
above written. 

PBSC: 
 
THE DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
OF PALM BEACH STATE COLLEGE,  
a body corporate under Florida law  
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name: ________________________ 
 
Title: ______________________________ 
 
 

LEP: 
 
LOXAHATCHEE EQUESTRIAN PARTNERS,  
LLC, a Florida limited liability company 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
 
Print Name:____________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________ 
 
 
 

ALI: 
 
ATLANTIC LAND INVESTMENTS, LLC,  
a Florida limited liability company 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name: ________________________ 
 
Title: ______________________________ 

SSI: 
 
SOLAR SPORTSYSTEMS, INC,  
a New York corporation 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
 
Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________ 
 
 
 

TOWN: 
 
THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a 
municipal corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Florida  
 
By: _______________________________ 
 
Print Name: ________________________ 
 
Title: ______________________________ 
 

 

  
 
 

50 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.b. 

RESOLUTIONS 

Resolution No. 2015-21 

(Ratifying Anita Kane for FAAC) 

51 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082268.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-21 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPOINTING ANITA KANE TO 
REPLACE AND SERVE THE REMAINING TERM OF VIRGINIA 
STANDISH AS A VOTING MEMBER OF THE FINANCE ADVISORY 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, through the adoption of Resolution 2015-13 on April 21, 2015, the Town 

Council made their appointments to the Town’s Finance Advisory and Audit Committee 

(FAAC), with each voting member to serve a term of one (1) year; and,  

WHEREAS, Councilman Tom Goltzené’s appointment to the FAAC, Virginia Standish, 

has announced her intent to resign as a voting member of the FAAC; and,  

WHEREAS, Councilman Goltzené has decided to appoint Anita Kane to replace, and 

serve the remaining term of, Mrs. Standish as his appointment of a voting member to the FAAC.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  The Town Council hereby accepts the resignation of Virginia Standish as a 

voting member of the FAAC, and appoints Councilman Goltzené’s selected appointment, Anita 

Kane, as a voting member of the Town’s Finance Advisory and Audit Committee (FAAC) to 

serve the remainder of Mrs. Standish’s term. 

  

52 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082268.1 1574-0702400 }  

Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

  ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
 GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS 7th DAY OF JULY, 2015.  
 

      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
     
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Jim Rockett  

53 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.b. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

AIR 
Fire Rescue Report 

54 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 1 of 6

June 30, 2015 No activity on this item
May 11, 2015 No activity on this item

April 15, 2015

This office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were covered 
regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances for D Road 
and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report progress at the 
June 16 Town Council meeting. 

April 1, 2015 No activity on this item

March 1, 2015
This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date and 
time during the week of March 9th.  

February 10, 2015 No activity on this item
January 26, 2015 No activity on this item
January 14, 2015 No activity on this item

December 29, 2014
A discussion with Minto’s attorney indicated Palm Beach County would agree for
the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may exclude the
County.

June 30, 2015 All funds have been received in this cost recovery accounts.

May 20, 2015
Staff began working with the owner to remediate the outstanding balance from
the cost recovery that occurred prior to the settlement.

May 19, 2015 Town Council approved the site plan

May 19, 2015
The site plan with conditions supported by staff is being presented to the Town
Council at its May 19, 2015 meeting.
Town Attorney spoke with Day’s counsel.  
The Town Attorney has received comments regarding the requested trail
easement and will be providing a response soon.

February 19, 2015

The February 19th P&Z and RETGAC joint meeting placed additional conditions
upon the site plan such as an equestrian trail on the north boundary of the
property from east to west and the Town’s engineer provide a review of the
conclusions of the traffic study and acceptance.

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida
Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA
MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 07/07/2015

Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for the 
funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road.

Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary discuss the 
prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting was to review site plan 
requirements and process

55 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 2 of 6

February 19, 2015
This item is due to be presented to the P&Z and RETGAC committees jointly at
their meeting.

January 12, 2015
Staff and Mr. Lipp, met with representatives reviewing Rural Vista  guidelines 
assisting the representatives determine the guidelines.

December 16, 2014 No Activity
December 9, 2014 Discussed the site plan specifically the following:

      Timing of submittal and hearings
addressing conditions of approval
perimeter landscaping buffer requirements
horse trail potential
PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings
LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage
Interconnection to westerly property discussion
Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015
P&Z meeting for January 2015
About March present to Town Council.
We reviewed the site plan submission requirements

June 30, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of the
letter.

June 11, 2015 Staff received a proposed letter from SFWMD to the property owners on 43rd

May 27, 2015
Received a telephone call from Ken Mudd regarding a draft letter that will be sent 
and establishing a meeting date.  It is believed the draft letter will be forthcoming 
in the next week or two.

May 11, 2015 No activity.
April 14, 2015 No activity on this item.
April 1, 2015 No activity.

February 23, 2015
Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in advance of a
letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter.

February 11, 2015 No activity.

January 15, 2015
This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work to 
plan their path forward.  Upon completing their planning effort, they will be in 
touch with staff.

January 14, 2015 No activity from SFWMD representative
December 16, 2015 No activity

Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and Ken Mudd, 
Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) in 
reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and swale improvement on 43rd.  As I 
understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was looking to determine whether or not the Town 
would assist them in correcting a deficiency in the road and swale drainage system on the road.  The 
Town will be contacted in the future regarding the next step to be taken to correct the problem.

56 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 3 of 6

June 30, 2015
Councilman Rockett requests the matter be brought forward to specific Council
action to prepare and RFP to remove the humps.

June 8, 2015
Due to time constraints, this office has been unable to specifically identify exact
cost.

May 11, 2015 No activity
Due to time constraints, this office has been unable to get a response from
potential vendors; however, the Town consultant believed the cost to be equal or
greater than the $700 cost per speed hump to install.

Roads:  Speed hump removal is being investigated as to the methodology and cost of eliminating those 
traffic control devices to meet the Town’s distance specifications.

57 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 4 of 6

June 30, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he continues to request 
additional time  and information

May 29, 2015
Attorney for Mr. Cherney reviewed documents; however, he was unable to finish his 
review

May 11, 2015
Staff is working to complete a public records request relative to this case as of 
May 11, 2015.

May 5, 2015
Staff began the survey and will finish and work to prepare a report for either the 
April 21, or May 5, 2015, agenda.
Additionally, staff has proceeded with various actions on other properties 
initiated by individuals.

June 8, 2015 No activity to report

April 16, 2015
Staff requested Lt. David L. Combs, consider implementing a COP program in the 
Town.

April 30, 2015

Sgt. Matthew J. LaVigna, Community Services Division, provided background 
information on establishing a COP program.  While he provided many details, 
some of the more important items are: We need 30 full time residents to apply; 
each member must commit to patrol 3 hours per week; each member must 
attend a monthly unit meeting, and the Town must supply the fuel; PBSO will 
supply the patrol vehicle that accommodates the Town’s roadways, uniform 
shirts, training and support.

June 22, 2015
Financial reports were accepted by the committee.  The committee reviewed the 
RFP for town management services.

Unauthorized living structures:  Pursuant to Town Council instruction, staff initiated action against 
1666 C Road for providing for the operations of excess living structures on the property which impacts 
the Town, at a minimum, through solid waste removal without appropriate payment for the services.

Law Enforcement:  Staff is working with the PBSO to create a Town wide “Citizen On Patrol.”

Committee: Finance Accounting and Auditing Committee  Town of Loxahatchee Groves - Town Hall

58 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 5 of 6

May 26, 2015

The FAAC voted for a new Chairperson Mr. Lung Chiu, and Vice-chair Greg Tindall.
The FAAC was educated on the sunshine law and how committee members are
allowed to interact presented by Jacob Horowitz, substituting for Mike Cirullo. 

The committee did not accept the financial data as it was presented to them very
late in the agenda process and the budget to actual report had incorrect formulas
in the printed version. Staff indicated that corrections would be made to the
formulas prior to presentation to the Town Council; however, the committee
decided to not the information due to formulaic errors and lateness of reporting.  

Subsequent to this, the committee determined that it would not review the waste
monitoring contract brought forward by the prior Chairperson of the committee.
Further, the majority of the members indicated the committee does not perform
audits of contracts or other items despite that being included as part of their
charge and the fact the committee has performed other similar inspections of
contracts.

59 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 6 of 6

June 8, 2015 No activity to report
June 3, 2015 Provided information to the Town planner for thoughts and comments.

3. ATTACHMENTS

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT

Not applicable.

5. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion to receive and file report.

Building:  Staff has received a request from Tom DiRocca at 2650 A RD to authorize events 1 day per 
month for 11 months contrary to the ULDC, section 80-025 (I) Frequency and duration. No outdoor 
event shall be permitted for a period of time exceeding three consecutive days, except that rodeos 
shall be limited to a maximum of three consecutive days. A total of three outdoor events can be 
permitted within a calendar year on any given property. ..."

60 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



S
ta

ti
o

n

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

5

O
n

s
c
e
n

e
C

lo
s
e

P
a

lm
 B

e
a

c
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

ir
e

 R
e

s
c

u
e

 L
o

x
a

h
a

tc
h

e
e

 G
ro

v
e

s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 T

im
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0
1
5
0
5
0
1
 t

o
 2

0
1
5
0
5
3
1

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

D
a
te

E
n

te
re

d
D

is
p

a
tc

h
E

n
ro

u
te

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

v
e

n
t

E
v
e
n

t 
#

D
is

p
 H

a
n

d
T

u
rn

o
u

t
T

ra
v
e
l

R
e
s
p

 T
im

e
*

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y

 C
a

ll
s

:

1
7

:1
7

:0
7

1
6

:3
5

:1
4

1
6

:2
7

:2
0

1
6

:2
6

:4
8

1
6

:2
6

:3
7

0
5

/0
1

/2
0

1
5

 D
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
9

:0
2

 0
:0

7
:5

4
 0

:0
0

:3
2

 0
:0

0
:3

6
F

1
5

0
6

6
6

7
2

0
2

:0
9

:3
4

0
1

:2
9

:0
7

0
1

:2
1

:0
9

0
1

:2
0

:0
1

0
1

:1
9

:5
5

0
5

/0
2

/2
0

1
5

 S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
L

V
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

9
:3

7
 0

:0
7

:5
8

 0
:0

1
:0

8
 0

:0
0

:3
1

F
1

5
0

6
6

9
5

1

1
7

:4
7

:1
5

1
7

:0
8

:0
1

1
7

:0
3

:0
7

1
7

:0
2

:2
3

1
7

:0
1

:3
0

0
5

/0
2

/2
0

1
5

 S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
L

V
D

  
P

B
C

2
1

 0
:0

6
:5

6
 0

:0
4

:5
4

 0
:0

0
:4

4
 0

:0
1

:1
8

F
1

5
0

6
7

2
9

3

1
2

:0
7

:2
0

1
1

:3
4

:3
6

1
1

:3
0

:1
0

1
1

:2
9

:3
7

1
1

:2
9

:1
2

1
1

:2
8

:5
7

0
5

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

 B
ID

D
IX

 R
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

5
:3

9
 0

:0
4

:2
6

 0
:0

0
:3

3
 0

:0
0

:4
0

F
1

5
0

6
7

7
5

0

1
1

:2
0

:0
9

1
0

:4
7

:3
8

1
0

:4
1

:1
9

1
0

:4
0

:3
7

1
0

:4
0

:2
8

1
0

:3
9

:5
6

0
5

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

 B
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
7

:4
2

 0
:0

6
:1

9
 0

:0
0

:4
2

 0
:0

0
:4

1
F

1
5

0
6

8
2

6
7

1
0

:5
5

:5
7

1
0

:5
5

:5
3

1
0

:4
9

:5
6

1
0

:4
9

:3
8

1
0

:4
9

:0
7

1
0

:4
8

:4
5

0
5

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
IN

G
 C

A
N

A
L

 R
D

/O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 B
L

V
D

  
  

2
0

 0
:0

7
:0

8
 0

:0
5

:5
7

 0
:0

0
:1

8
 0

:0
0

:5
3

F
1

5
0

6
8

2
7

4

2
1

:1
7

:4
9

2
0

:4
6

:4
9

2
0

:4
0

:3
1

2
0

:3
9

:4
0

2
0

:3
9

:3
5

2
0

:3
9

:0
6

0
5

/0
5

/2
0

1
5

 T
A

N
G

E
R

IN
E

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

7
:4

3
 0

:0
6

:1
8

 0
:0

0
:5

1
 0

:0
0

:3
4

F
1

5
0

6
9

0
9

1

2
1

:1
8

:2
5

2
0

:5
3

:4
7

2
0

:4
1

:1
9

2
0

:4
0

:3
3

2
0

:3
9

:5
2

2
0

:3
8

:5
3

0
5

/0
5

/2
0

1
5

 A
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:1
4

:5
4

 0
:1

2
:2

8
 0

:0
0

:4
6

 0
:0

1
:4

0
F

1
5

0
6

9
0

9
2

0
7

:5
2

:3
3

0
7

:1
9

:3
9

0
7

:1
4

:2
1

0
7

:1
3

:2
1

0
7

:1
3

:0
7

0
7

:1
2

:3
0

0
5

/0
7

/2
0

1
5

 C
A

S
E

Y
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
7

:0
9

 0
:0

5
:1

8
 0

:0
1

:0
0

 0
:0

0
:5

1
F

1
5

0
6

9
7

7
9

1
6

:2
9

:4
4

1
5

:3
5

:3
0

1
5

:3
1

:3
7

1
5

:3
0

:4
7

1
5

:3
0

:3
7

1
5

:3
0

:1
6

0
5

/0
7

/2
0

1
5

 D
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
5

:1
4

 0
:0

3
:5

3
 0

:0
0

:5
0

 0
:0

0
:3

1
F

1
5

0
7

0
1

0
3

2
0

:3
6

:2
9

2
0

:1
1

:5
5

2
0

:0
9

:2
2

2
0

:0
8

:4
2

2
0

:0
8

:3
0

2
0

:0
8

:0
2

0
5

/0
7

/2
0

1
5

D
 R

D
/C

 R
D

  
  

2
1

 0
:0

3
:5

3
 0

:0
2

:3
3

 0
:0

0
:4

0
 0

:0
0

:4
0

F
1

5
0

7
0

2
4

0

2
0

:3
6

:3
9

2
0

:0
2

:2
7

1
9

:5
9

:2
7

1
9

:5
8

:4
7

1
9

:5
8

:3
7

0
5

/0
8

/2
0

1
5

 O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 B
L

V
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

4
:1

5
 0

:0
3

:0
0

 0
:0

0
:4

0
 0

:0
0

:3
5

F
1

5
0

7
0

7
7

6

0
1

:1
8

:3
8

0
0

:4
9

:3
8

0
0

:4
5

:5
5

0
0

:4
4

:5
8

0
0

:4
4

:5
0

0
5

/1
2

/2
0

1
5

O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 B
L

V
D

/B
 R

D
  

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

5
:1

3
 0

:0
3

:4
3

 0
:0

0
:5

7
 0

:0
0

:3
3

F
1

5
0

7
2

5
7

7

1
3

:2
9

:4
2

1
2

:5
7

:5
9

1
2

:5
5

:2
4

1
2

:5
4

:3
6

1
2

:5
4

:2
4

0
5

/1
4

/2
0

1
5

 O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 B
L

V
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

4
:0

0
 0

:0
2

:3
5

 0
:0

0
:4

8
 0

:0
0

:3
7

F
1

5
0

7
3

9
5

1

1
4

:3
4

:0
5

1
4

:2
0

:3
6

1
4

:1
4

:3
0

1
4

:1
3

:3
9

1
4

:1
3

:3
3

0
5

/1
5

/2
0

1
5

 B
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
7

:2
8

 0
:0

6
:0

6
 0

:0
0

:5
1

 0
:0

0
:3

1
F

1
5

0
7

4
5

7
9

1
7

:0
9

:2
6

1
6

:2
9

:3
9

1
6

:2
5

:1
2

1
6

:2
4

:3
9

1
6

:2
4

:3
1

1
6

:2
4

:1
1

0
5

/1
5

/2
0

1
5

 T
A

N
G

E
R

IN
E

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

5
:2

8
 0

:0
4

:2
7

 0
:0

0
:3

3
 0

:0
0

:2
8

F
1

5
0

7
4

6
5

4

1
8

:0
4

:4
4

1
7

:2
7

:4
3

1
7

:2
2

:2
4

1
7

:2
1

:5
4

1
7

:2
1

:4
7

0
5

/1
6

/2
0

1
5

 2
2

N
D

 C
T

 N
 L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

6
:2

1
 0

:0
5

:1
9

 0
:0

0
:3

0
 0

:0
0

:3
2

F
1

5
0

7
5

2
0

7

1
2

:2
1

:1
7

1
2

:0
3

:5
1

1
1

:5
8

:1
9

1
1

:5
7

:5
2

1
1

:5
7

:4
7

1
1

:5
7

:3
0

0
5

/1
7

/2
0

1
5

 S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
A

D
 8

0
  

 P
B

C
2

0
 0

:0
6

:2
1

 0
:0

5
:3

2
 0

:0
0

:2
7

 0
:0

0
:2

2
F

1
5

0
7

5
6

0
1

1
8

:4
4

:4
6

1
7

:5
0

:5
0

1
7

:4
6

:1
3

1
7

:4
5

:2
7

1
7

:4
5

:1
3

1
7

:4
4

:3
4

0
5

/1
8

/2
0

1
5

 E
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
6

:1
6

 0
:0

4
:3

7
 0

:0
0

:4
6

 0
:0

0
:5

3
F

1
5

0
7

6
3

1
1

0
8

:0
3

:4
1

0
7

:3
7

:2
5

0
7

:2
6

:1
1

0
7

:2
4

:5
9

0
7

:2
4

:4
9

0
5

/1
9

/2
0

1
5

 O
K

E
E

C
H

O
B

E
E

 B
L

V
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:1

3
:0

1
 0

:1
1

:1
4

 0
:0

1
:1

2
 0

:0
0

:3
5

F
1

5
0

7
6

5
3

3

1
4

:4
0

:2
4

1
4

:0
0

:0
3

1
3

:5
3

:2
6

1
3

:5
2

:4
2

1
3

:5
2

:3
2

1
3

:5
1

:4
6

0
5

/1
9

/2
0

1
5

 F
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
8

:1
7

 0
:0

6
:3

7
 0

:0
0

:4
4

 0
:0

0
:5

6
F

1
5

0
7

6
7

2
1

1
5

:5
2

:1
7

1
5

:3
0

:1
2

1
5

:2
6

:3
4

1
5

:2
6

:0
0

1
5

:2
5

:4
6

1
5

:2
5

:3
3

0
5

/1
9

/2
0

1
5

C
 R

D
/O

K
E

E
C

H
O

B
E

E
 B

L
V

D
  

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

4
:3

9
 0

:0
3

:3
8

 0
:0

0
:3

4
 0

:0
0

:2
7

F
1

5
0

7
6

7
7

1

0
7

:2
8

:0
6

0
6

:5
0

:3
6

0
6

:3
5

:5
9

0
6

:3
5

:0
4

0
6

:3
4

:5
6

0
6

:3
4

:3
2

0
5

/2
3

/2
0

1
5

 K
A

Z
E

E
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:1
6

:0
4

 0
:1

4
:3

7
 0

:0
0

:5
5

 0
:0

0
:3

2
F

1
5

0
7

8
8

2
5

2
3

:3
7

:3
4

2
2

:2
8

:2
7

2
2

:2
4

:5
2

2
2

:2
3

:4
8

2
2

:2
3

:4
3

2
2

:2
2

:5
3

0
5

/2
3

/2
0

1
5

 2
4

T
H

 C
T

 N
 L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

5
:3

4
 0

:0
3

:3
5

 0
:0

1
:0

4
 0

:0
0

:5
5

F
1

5
0

7
9

2
7

2

1
4

:1
5

:4
0

1
3

:5
6

:0
1

1
3

:5
1

:2
5

1
3

:5
0

:4
5

1
3

:5
0

:3
5

1
3

:5
0

:0
3

0
5

/2
4

/2
0

1
5

 S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
L

V
D

  
P

B
C

2
1

 0
:0

5
:5

8
 0

:0
4

:3
6

 0
:0

0
:4

0
 0

:0
0

:4
2

F
1

5
0

7
9

6
1

0

1
6

:1
9

:4
2

1
6

:0
4

:2
0

1
5

:5
8

:3
7

1
5

:5
7

:5
4

1
5

:5
7

:4
7

1
5

:5
6

:2
9

0
5

/2
4

/2
0

1
5

 S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
L

V
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

7
:5

1
 0

:0
5

:4
3

 0
:0

0
:4

3
 0

:0
1

:2
5

F
1

5
0

7
9

6
5

7

0
8

:1
9

:0
9

0
7

:2
4

:4
5

0
7

:1
6

:3
7

0
7

:1
5

:3
3

0
7

:1
5

:2
4

0
5

/2
5

/2
0

1
5

 N
O

R
T

H
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

6
 0

:0
9

:4
6

 0
:0

8
:0

8
 0

:0
1

:0
4

 0
:0

0
:3

4
F

1
5

0
7

9
9

7
5

1
3

:5
1

:0
2

1
3

:1
2

:5
1

1
3

:0
7

:1
8

1
3

:0
6

:3
9

1
3

:0
6

:1
0

1
3

:0
5

:3
5

0
5

/2
6

/2
0

1
5

 T
E

M
P

L
E

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

7
:1

6
 0

:0
5

:3
3

 0
:0

0
:3

9
 0

:0
1

:0
4

F
1

5
0

8
0

6
8

3

2
0

:2
1

:0
1

1
9

:2
9

:3
0

1
9

:2
4

:0
9

1
9

:2
3

:2
5

1
9

:2
3

:1
8

0
5

/2
6

/2
0

1
5

 B
R

Y
A

N
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
6

:3
7

 0
:0

5
:2

1
 0

:0
0

:4
4

 0
:0

0
:3

2
F

1
5

0
8

0
8

6
7

C
re

a
te

d
 b

y 
Ji

ll 
G

re
g

o
ry

 o
n

 1
0

/0
8

/2
0

0
8

 (
u

p
d

a
te

d
 0

5
/2

3
/2

0
1

2
)

H
:\

C
ry

st
a

l\C
A

D
\F

IR
E

C
A

D
A

R
C

H
\C

ity
 o

r 
S

p
e

ci
fic

 A
re

a
s\

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l R
e

sp
o

n
se

 T
im

e
 N

E
W

 5
-2

3
-2

0
1

2
.r

p
t

P
a

g
e

 1
 o

f 
2

62 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



S
ta

ti
o

n

6
/2

2
/2

0
1

5

O
n

s
c
e
n

e
C

lo
s
e

P
a

lm
 B

e
a

c
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
 F

ir
e

 R
e

s
c

u
e

 L
o

x
a

h
a

tc
h

e
e

 G
ro

v
e

s
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 T

im
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

2
0
1
5
0
5
0
1
 t

o
 2

0
1
5
0
5
3
1

R
e
c
e
iv

e
d

D
a
te

E
n

te
re

d
D

is
p

a
tc

h
E

n
ro

u
te

L
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
E

v
e

n
t

E
v
e
n

t 
#

D
is

p
 H

a
n

d
T

u
rn

o
u

t
T

ra
v
e
l

R
e
s
p

 T
im

e
*

1
2

:5
3

:0
0

1
2

:0
9

:4
0

1
2

:0
6

:0
1

1
2

:0
4

:2
4

1
2

:0
4

:1
6

1
2

:0
3

:4
6

0
5

/2
7

/2
0

1
5

 C
A

S
E

Y
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
5

:5
4

 0
:0

3
:3

9
 0

:0
1

:3
7

 0
:0

0
:3

8
F

1
5

0
8

1
2

0
1

1
3

:1
8

:0
0

1
2

:2
4

:3
5

1
2

:1
9

:0
5

1
2

:1
8

:5
1

1
2

:1
7

:4
4

1
2

:1
5

:5
3

0
5

/2
9

/2
0

1
5

 E
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
8

:4
2

 0
:0

5
:3

0
 0

:0
0

:1
4

 0
:0

2
:5

8
F

1
5

0
8

2
2

9
3

1
5

:4
1

:5
5

1
5

:1
8

:0
3

1
5

:1
4

:1
3

1
5

:1
3

:1
5

1
5

:1
3

:0
4

1
5

:0
9

:1
4

0
5

/3
0

/2
0

1
5

E
 R

D
/N

O
R

T
H

 R
D

  
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
8

:4
9

 0
:0

3
:5

0
 0

:0
0

:5
8

 0
:0

4
:0

1
F

1
5

0
8

2
9

4
7

2
2

:3
1

:0
4

1
9

:0
6

:1
0

1
9

:0
0

:0
9

1
8

:5
9

:5
5

1
8

:5
9

:4
4

0
5

/3
0

/2
0

1
5

 V
A

L
E

N
C

IA
 D

R
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
6

:5
1

 0
:0

6
:0

1
 0

:0
0

:1
4

 0
:0

0
:3

6
F

1
5

0
8

3
0

6
0

1
9

:5
6

:3
3

1
9

:3
0

:0
6

1
9

:2
2

:3
1

1
9

:2
2

:0
9

1
9

:2
1

:5
6

1
9

:2
0

:3
4

0
5

/3
0

/2
0

1
5

 S
O

U
T

H
E

R
N

 B
L

V
D

  
P

B
C

2
1

 0
:0

9
:3

2
 0

:0
7

:3
5

 0
:0

0
:2

2
 0

:0
1

:3
5

F
1

5
0

8
3

0
7

3

0
8

:4
3

:2
3

0
8

:2
6

:4
4

0
8

:2
0

:3
9

0
8

:2
0

:1
0

0
8

:1
9

:5
5

0
8

:1
9

:2
0

0
5

/3
1

/2
0

1
5

 T
A

N
G

E
R

IN
E

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

7
:2

4
 0

:0
6

:0
5

 0
:0

0
:2

9
 0

:0
0

:5
0

F
1

5
0

8
3

3
1

5

1
2

:0
8

:0
3

1
1

:4
5

:0
1

1
1

:4
1

:3
6

1
1

:4
0

:5
2

1
1

:4
0

:4
0

0
5

/3
1

/2
0

1
5

 E
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
4

:4
6

 0
:0

3
:2

5
 0

:0
0

:4
4

 0
:0

0
:3

7
F

1
5

0
8

3
3

9
4

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e
 T

im
e
s
:

 0
:0

0
:5

4
 0

:0
0
:4

4
 0

:0
5
:4

7
 0

:0
7
:2

5

N
o

n
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c

y
 C

a
ll

s
:

1
6

:2
8

:0
4

1
6

:1
8

:2
5

1
6

:1
6

:2
2

1
6

:1
6

:1
8

1
6

:1
6

:1
5

0
5

/0
1

/2
0

1
5

 E
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
2

:3
5

 0
:0

2
:0

3
 0

:0
0

:0
4

 0
:0

0
:2

8
F

1
5

0
6

6
6

6
4

2
0

:1
3

:5
2

2
0

:0
1

:1
3

1
9

:4
5

:5
8

1
9

:4
4

:5
1

1
9

:4
4

:3
6

1
9

:4
1

:3
1

0
5

/0
3

/2
0

1
5

 4
4

T
H

 S
T

 N
 L

O
X

2
1

 0
:1

9
:4

2
 0

:1
5

:1
5

 0
:0

1
:0

7
 0

:0
3

:2
0

F
1

5
0

6
7

9
9

1

1
9

:2
4

:3
6

1
9

:1
1

:5
8

1
9

:0
8

:5
0

1
9

:0
7

:5
4

1
9

:0
7

:3
9

0
5

/0
4

/2
0

1
5

 D
 R

D
  

L
O

X
2

1
 0

:0
4

:4
4

 0
:0

3
:0

8
 0

:0
0

:5
6

 0
:0

0
:4

0
F

1
5

0
6

8
5

1
9

1
3

:5
6

:2
6

1
3

:2
6

:0
2

1
3

:2
3

:1
7

1
3

:2
2

:1
5

1
3

:2
1

:5
6

0
5

/2
3

/2
0

1
5

E
 R

D
/O

K
E

E
C

H
O

B
E

E
 B

L
V

D
  

  
L

O
X

2
1

 0
:0

4
:3

1
 0

:0
2

:4
5

 0
:0

1
:0

2
 0

:0
0

:4
4

F
1

5
0

7
8

9
9

6

C
o

rr
u

p
t 

D
a

ta
:

E
m

p
ty

 T
im

e
 F

ie
ld

s
0

2
:2

6
:0

9
0

2
:2

4
:3

5
0

2
:2

1
:5

7
0

2
:2

1
:4

9
0

2
:1

8
:3

0
0

5
/1

7
/2

0
1

5
 F

 R
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

F
1

5
0

7
5

4
2

6

E
m

p
ty

 T
im

e
 F

ie
ld

s
1

4
:1

9
:5

2
1

4
:1

6
:0

3
1

4
:1

4
:5

4
1

4
:1

4
:4

1
0

5
/0

1
/2

0
1

5
 C

IT
R

U
S

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

F
1

5
0

6
6

6
2

0

E
m

p
ty

 T
im

e
 F

ie
ld

s
1

7
:4

9
:1

6
1

7
:4

7
:4

0
1

7
:4

7
:1

1
1

7
:4

6
:5

9
0

5
/2

8
/2

0
1

5
 C

IT
R

U
S

 D
R

  
L

O
X

2
1

F
1

5
0

8
1

9
0

3

E
m

p
ty

 T
im

e
 F

ie
ld

s
2

0
:5

0
:1

4
2

0
:4

4
:0

3
2

0
:4

2
:5

5
2

0
:4

2
:5

0
0

5
/2

9
/2

0
1

5
 N

O
R

T
H

 R
D

  
L

O
X

2
1

F
1

5
0

8
2

5
6

2

 4
4

T
o

ta
l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

E
v
e
n

ts
:

*R
e
p
re

se
n
ts

 c
a
ll 

re
ce

iv
e
d
 t
o
 a

rr
iv

a
l. 

 I
f 
th

e
re

 i
s 

n
o
 r

e
ce

iv
e
d
 t
im

e
, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 a
n
n
u
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e
 c

a
ll 

re
ce

iv
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
ll 

e
n
te

re
d
 t
im

e
 is

 u
se

d
.

C
re

a
te

d
 b

y 
Ji

ll 
G

re
g

o
ry

 o
n

 1
0

/0
8

/2
0

0
8

 (
u

p
d

a
te

d
 0

5
/2

3
/2

0
1

2
)

H
:\

C
ry

st
a

l\C
A

D
\F

IR
E

C
A

D
A

R
C

H
\C

ity
 o

r 
S

p
e

ci
fic

 A
re

a
s\

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l R
e

sp
o

n
se

 T
im

e
 N

E
W

 5
-2

3
-2

0
1

2
.r

p
t

P
a

g
e

 2
 o

f 
2

63 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Forfeiture Hearing Contemplation 

64 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



85 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



88 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



90 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



91 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



93 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



96 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



99 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



100 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



101 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



102 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



103 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



104 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



107 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



108 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



113 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



114 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



116 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



120 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



121 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



122 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



123 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



124 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



125 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



126 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



127 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



128 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



129 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



130 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



131 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



132 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



133 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



134 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



135 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



136 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



137 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



138 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



139 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



140 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



141 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



142 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



143 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



144 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



145 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



146 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



147 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



148 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Town Management Services Request for Proposal 

149 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



150 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



151 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



152 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 1 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into as of the ___ day of ________________, 2015, by and between the TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a Florida municipal corporation organized and operating 
pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida, with a business address of 155 F Road, Loxahatchee 
Groves, Florida 33470 (“Town”) and ________________________________________, a 
Florida _________________ company with a business address of _______________________. 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, _______________ was organized to provide professional management and 
other specialized services to the Town and, for those purposes, the Town has retained 
_______________ to provide those services to the Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, _______________ desires to be retained by the Town for the purpose of 

providing Town Manager services to the Town, subject to the terms and conditions hereof. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Incorporation.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

2. Retention of _______________. 
 

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Town hereby 
retains _______________ to provide the Services (hereinafter defined) commencing on October 
1, 2015 (the “Commencement Date”) and _______________ hereby agrees to provide the 
Services to the Town. For purposes hereof, the “Services” shall mean the exercise and discharge 
of all of the powers, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Town Manager of the Town as 
such powers, authority, duties and responsibilities are set forth in the Town Charter of the Town 
(the “Town Charter”), including those services described in the Scope of Work which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit "A".    

 
(b) The Services include providing a Town Manager on a full-time basis, 

Town Clerk and clerical staff during Town business hours, and financial services required by the 
Town as provided in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit "A".  

 
(c) Beginning on the Commencement Date and continuing during the Term 

(hereinafter defined), _______________ shall perform the Services in compliance with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws associated with the position of Town Manager of a 
Florida municipality.   

 

153 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 2 
 

(d) The Town agrees that, to the fullest extent permissible under the law, in 
performing the Services, _______________ shall be entitled to all the rights, privileges and 
immunities afforded to individuals serving in the capacity of Town Manager of a Florida 
municipality pursuant to the United States Constitution, the Florida Constitution and all Federal, 
state and local laws and regulations.   

 
(e) In connection with the retention of _______________ as described in this 

Agreement, it is the express intent of the Town to have the individuals named in 
_______________’s response to the RFP 2015-____ serve in the capacities identified.  
_______________ recognizes and understands that the Town is relying on the use of these 
individuals when contracting with _______________ and, except for the Town Manager 
position, _______________ shall advise the Town Council in writing of any changes to the 
assigned personnel as set forth in _______________’s response to the RFP 2015-____, and the 
Town Council shall have the right to approve any replacements, which approval shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. As to the Town Manager position, such may not be changed 
without the advance approval of the Town Council, which may approve or reject same for any or 
no reason; provided that if the change is to appoint _______________, approval by the Town 
Council shall not be unreasonably withheld.   

 
3. Fee and Expenses. 
 

(a) In return for the Services, _______________ shall be entitled to receive 
from the Town  [TO BE COMPLETED BASED UPON FEE SCHEDULE/PROPOSAL 
FOR SELECTED RESPONDER] 
 
Each month during the Term, _______________ shall submit an invoice for the Fee then payable 
by the Town.  The terms of the Florida Prompt Payment Act, Florida Statute Sections 218.70-
.80, are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and the Town agrees to make payment in 
accordance with same. 

 
(b) Commencing on the Commencement Date and throughout the Term 

hereof, the Town shall make available to _______________, at no charge, offices, facilities, 
equipment and supplies as appropriate to enable _______________ to perform the Services as 
Town Manager.  _______________ agrees that such offices, facilities, equipment and supplies 
shall be used solely for the Services, and shall not be used for any other services or purposes of 
_______________. 

 
(c) _______________ shall be responsible for payment of all fees and/or costs 

associated with maintaining professional designations, certifications or licenses of any 
individuals required to possess a professional designation, certification or license by the Town 
Charter or the RFP 2015    , subject to appropriation by the Town Council.  _______________ 
may request that any fees and/or costs associated with maintaining professional designations, 
certifications or licenses under this section be reimbursed by the Town by application to the 
Town Council for reimbursement, which the approval or denial of a request for reimbursement 
will be in the discretion of the Town Council.     

 

154 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 3 
 

4. Term; Termination. The initial term of this Agreement (the “Initial Term”) shall 
commence on the Commencement Date hereof and shall continue up to and including September 
30, 2018, subject to the right of the parties to mutually agree, in writing, to extend the Initial 
Term for additional one year terms (the “Renewal Term”) in each case subject to the right of 
earlier termination as hereafter provided.  A decision by the Town Council not to renew is not a 
termination of the agreement, or a termination of the Town Manager pursuant to the Charter.  
The Initial Term, together with any Renewal Term, is referred to herein as the “Term.” The 
Town may terminate the Term of this Agreement at any time, without regard to any breach 
hereof by _______________ and without any liability or obligation to _______________, only 
upon sixty (60) days prior written notice, and subject to the Town Charter requirements.  
_______________ may terminate the Term of this Agreement at any time, without regard to any 
breach hereof by the Town and without any liability or obligation to the Town, upon one 
hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice to the Mayor of the Town and the Town Council.  
In the event of a termination by either party under this paragraph, _______________ shall be 
entitled solely to payment of fees accrued but not yet paid through the date of termination.  The 
rights and obligations of the Town and _______________ that arise prior to expiration of the 
Term, including the Town’s obligation to pay to _______________ any earned and unpaid 
portion of the Fee, shall survive any termination or expiration of the Term of this Agreement.   

 
5. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of _______________ and the Town. 
 

(a) _______________ hereby represents and warrants that (i) it is a Florida 
limited liability company, duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws of the 
State of Florida; (ii) it has the legal power and authority to enter into this Agreement and that the 
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
_______________; (iii) it has the professional expertise, experience and personnel to enable it to 
perform the Services; and (iv) it possesses any and all licenses or certifications required to 
perform the Services, that such licenses or certifications are current and that _______________ 
is and shall be in good standing with respect to such requirements throughout the Term of this 
Agreement.    

 
(b) _______________ shall not commence performance hereunder until all 

insurance required under Sections 5(c) hereof and such insurance has been confirmed by the Town, 
nor shall _______________ allow any subcontractor to commence work on his subcontract until all 
similar such insurance required of the subcontractor has been obtained and approved. 
 
   (i) Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required 
insurance shall be filed with the Town’s Attorney prior to the Commencement Date.  These 
Certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not be 
cancelled until at least forty-five days (45) prior written notice has been given to the Town.  Policies 
shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida.  
Financial Ratings must be not less than “A-VI” in the latest edition of “Best Key Rating Guide”, 
published by A.M. Best Guide.   

 
 (ii) Insurance shall be in force until the obligations required to be 

fulfilled under the terms of the Agreement are satisfied.  In the event the insurance certificate 

155 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 4 
 

provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate and lapse during the period of this Agreement, 
then in that event, _______________ shall furnish, at least forty-five (45) days prior to the 
expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof that equal and 
like coverage for the balance of the period of the Agreement and extension thereunder is in effect.  
_______________ shall not commence nor continue to provide any Services pursuant to this 
Agreement unless all required insurance remains in full force and effect.  _______________ shall 
be liable to Town for any lapses in service resulting from a gap in insurance coverage. 

 
(c) Pursuant to Section 5(b) hereof, during the Term _______________ shall 

obtain and maintain the following minimum insurance: 

(i) Errors & Omissions Coverage for Directors and Officers with a 
 $1,000,000 limit 

(ii) Worker’s Compensation Insurance for all _______________ 
employees, with the following limits: 

 
    A. Worker's Compensation Statutory Limits 
    B. Employer’s Liability      $500,000 each accident 
             $500,000 Disease-policy limit 
             $500,000 Disease-each employee 
 

If _______________ is or claims to be exempt from all or a portion of this 
requirement of Section 5(c)(ii), _______________ shall provide Town proof of such 
exemption along with a written request on _______________ letterhead for Town to 
exempt _______________, which exemption shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

(iii) Comprehensive Auto Liability coverage which shall include 
owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, with the following limits: 

A. Bodily Injury 
  1. Each Occurrence   $100,000 
  2. Annual Aggregate   $500,000 

B. Property Damage 
  1. Each Occurrence   $100,000 
  2. Annual Aggregate   $500,000 

(iv) _______________ is required to post a Dishonesty Bond or its 
equivalent, as shall be determined to be necessary by the Town, in 
an amount equal to $1,000,000.00 with a deductible of no more 
than $5,000.00. 

 
(d) _______________ shall name the Town as an additional insured on each 

of the policies required herein, and provide a certificate of insurance to the Town 
evidencing such coverages. 

   

156 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 5 
 

(e) The Town hereby represents and warrants that (i) it is duly organized and 
validly existing as a municipal corporation of the State of Florida; (ii) it has the legal 
power and authority to enter into this Agreement; and (iii) the execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the Town Council.  

 
(f) All required insurance shall be an expense of _______________. 
 
(g) Notwithstanding any other provision of Section 5 herein, in the event that 

_______________ certifies in writing to the Town Council that it is unable to obtain the 
insurance coverages required by Section 5(c), _______________ shall obtain the 
maximum available insurance coverage for each required category of insurance.  If 
evidence of an available higher insurance coverage than that obtained by 
_______________ is presented to _______________, _______________ shall obtain the 
higher insurance coverage up to those amounts required in Section 5(c).   
 
6. Indemnification. 
 

(a) _______________ hereby indemnifies and holds harmless the Town, its 
elected and appointed officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands or causes of action of whatsoever kind or nature, and any losses, costs, expenses, 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, liabilities, damages, orders, judgments, or decrees sustained by the 
Town, its elected and appointed officers, agents and employees arising out of or resulting from 
the grossly negligent acts, or willful or fraudulent conduct of _______________ or other 
_______________ personnel performing the Services or otherwise arising from this Agreement. 

 
 (b) To the extent not prohibited by Florida law or inconsistent with the 

Town’s sovereign immunity rights as contained in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, Town hereby 
indemnifies and holds harmless _______________, its managers and appointed officers, agents 
and employees from and against any and all claims, demands or causes of action of whatsoever 
kind or nature, and any losses, costs, expenses, reasonable attorneys’ fees, liabilities, damages, 
orders, judgments, or decrees sustained by _______________, its managers and appointed 
officers, agents and employees arising out of or resulting from grossly negligent acts, or willful 
or fraudulent conduct of the Town or other Town officials arising from this Agreement.   

 
(c) Each party acknowledges the receipt of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other 

good and valuable consideration as the specific consideration for the indemnities provided by 
each party herein. 

 
(d) The provisions of this Section shall survive the termination or expiration 

of the Term of this Agreement.  
 
7. Miscellaneous. 
 

(a) Notices.  Any and all notices permitted or required to be made under this 
Agreement shall be in writing, signed by the party giving such notice and shall be delivered 
personally, telecopied, telexed, or sent by certified mail or overnight mail via nationally 

157 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 6 
 

recognized courier service (such as Federal Express), to the other party at the address set forth 
below, or at such other address as may be supplied in writing and of which receipt has been 
acknowledged in writing.  The date of personal delivery, telecopy or telex or two (2) business 
days after the date of mailing (or the next business day after delivery to such courier service), as 
the case may be, shall be the date of such notice.  For the purposes of this Agreement the address 
of the Town and _______________ shall be as follows: 

 
 

To _______________: _______________ 
 c/o _______________ , Manager 
 (address) 
 
 Telephone No.  
 Facsimile No.    
 

To Town:  David Browning, Mayor 
155 F Road  
Loxahatchee Groves, FL  33470 

   Telephone No. (561) 793-2418 
   Facsimile No. (561) 793-2420 
 
With copy to:  Office of the Town Attorney 
   Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
   3099 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 200 
   Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308 
   Telephone No. (561) 276-9400 
   Facsimile No.  (954) 771-4923 
 
or to such other address or such other person as any party shall designate, in writing, to the other 
for such purposes and in the manner hereinabove set forth. 
 

(b) Entire Agreement.  This Agreement sets forth all the promises, covenants, 
agreements, conditions and understandings between the parties hereto, and supersedes all prior 
and contemporaneous agreements, understandings, inducements or conditions, expressed or 
implied, oral or written, except as herein contained.  
 

(c) Amendment.  The parties hereby irrevocably agree that no attempted 
amendment, modification, termination, discharge or change (collectively, "Amendment") of this 
Agreement shall be valid and effective, unless the Town and _______________ shall agree in 
writing to such Amendment. 
 

(d) No Waiver.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless it is in writing and signed by the party against whom it is asserted, and any such 
written waiver shall only be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates and shall not be 
deemed to be a continuing or future waiver. 
 

158 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 7 
 

(e) Headings.  The headings set forth in this Agreement are for convenience 
only and shall not be considered as part of this Agreement in any respect nor shall they in any 
way affect the substance of any provisions contained in this Agreement. 
 

(f) Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and 
enforced in accordance with, the laws of the State of Florida, and any proceeding arising 
between the parties in any manner pertaining or related to this Agreement shall, to the extent 
permitted by law, be held in Palm Beach County, Florida. 

 
(g)    Relationship of Parties.  This Agreement does not create an employee/ 

employer relationship between the parties.  It is the intent of the parties that _______________ is 
an independent contractor under this Agreement and not the Town's employee for any and all 
purposes, including but not limited to, the application of the Fair Labor Standards Act minimum 
wage and overtime payments, Federal Insurance Contribution Act, the Social Security Act, the 
Federal Unemployment Tax Act, the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, the State Workers 
Compensation Act, and the State unemployment insurance law.  _______________ shall retain 
sole and absolute discretion in the judgment of the manner and means of carrying out its 
activities and responsibilities hereunder.  _______________ agrees that it is a separate and 
independent enterprise from the Town, that it has made its own investment in its business, and 
that it will utilize a high level of skill necessary to perform the work.  This Agreement shall not 
be construed as creating any joint employment relationship between _______________ or other 
_______________ personnel and the Town, and the Town will not be liable for any obligation 
incurred by _______________ or other _______________ personnel, including but not limited 
to unpaid minimum wages and/or overtime premiums. 
 

(h) Extent of Agreement.  This Agreement represents the entire and integrated 
agreement between the Town and _______________ and supersedes all prior negotiations, 
representations or agreements, either written or oral. 

(i) Legal Representation.  It is acknowledged that each party to this 
Agreement had the opportunity to be represented by legal counsel in the preparation of this 
Agreement and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be interpreted strictly against the party 
preparing same shall not apply herein due to the joint contributions of both parties. 

 (j) Amendment.  It is further agreed that no modification, amendment or 
alteration in the terms or conditions contained herein shall be effective unless contained in a 
written document executed with the same formality and of equal dignity herewith. 

(k) No Contingent Fees.  _______________ warrants that it has not employed 
or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for 
_______________ to solicit or secure this Agreement, and that he has not paid or agreed to pay 
any person, company, corporation, individual or firm any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or 
other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement.  
For the breach or violation of this provision, the Town shall have the right to terminate the 
Agreement without liability at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 
recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration. 

 

159 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 8 
 

(l) Assignment.  This Agreement, or any interest herein, shall not be assigned, 
transferred or otherwise encumbered, under any circumstances, by _______________ without 
the prior written consent of the Town.   

 
(m) Records.  Both Parties shall keep, maintain and preserve books and 

records for the required retention periods, as provided by Ch. 119, F.S., as amended from time to 
time. 

 
(n) Exhibits.  Each Exhibit referred to in this Agreement forms an essential 

part of this Agreement.  The exhibits if not physically attached should be treated as part of this 
Agreement and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
 (o) Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 

counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which when taken together shall 
constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
(p) Provisions Severable.  This Agreement is intended to be performed in 

accordance with, and only to the extent permitted by, all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations of the jurisdictions in which the parties do business.  If any provision of this 
Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, entity or circumstance shall, for any reason 
or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement and the 
application of such provision to other persons, entities or circumstances shall not be affected 
thereby, but rather shall remain in full force and effect, and be construed and enforced to the 
greatest extent permitted by law as if such invalid or unenforceable provision(s) were omitted. 

 
(q) Public Records. _____________ shall comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter 
119, Florida Statutes.  Specifically, ______________ shall: 
 

1.  Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be 
required by the Town in order to perform the service; 
 
2. Provide the public with access to such public records on the same terms and 
conditions that the Town would provide the records and at a cost that does not 
exceed that provided in chapter 119, Fla. Stat., or as otherwise provided by law; 
 
3. Ensure that public records that are exempt or that are confidential and exempt 
from public record requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law; 
and 
 
4.  Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer to the Town, at 
no cost, all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the 
contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential 
and exempt. All records stored electronically must be provided to the Town in a 
format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the agency. 

 

160 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 9 
 

The T o w n  shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement for the refusal by 
the _______________ to comply with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  The ____________ 
shall retain all records associated with this Agreement for a period of five (5) years from the 
date of expiration of this Agreement. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the date first above written. 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

 
      By:       
        David Browning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
      
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
Michael D. Cirullo, Jr.,Town Attorney  

 
      
By:      By: 
                 Name:  ______________________________  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 ____ 
Print Name:  ____________________ 
Title:  _________________________  (CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

161 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 10 
 

 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA   ) 
      ) ss: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

 
BEFORE ME, an officer duly authorized by law to administer oaths and take 

acknowledgments, personally appeared  _______________  as ______________ of 
_______________, and acknowledged execution of the foregoing Agreement as the duly 
authorized official of _______________ , to execute same, for the use and purposes mentioned 
in it and affixed the official seal of the corporation, and that the instrument is the act and deed of 
that corporation. 

 
IN  WITNESS  OF  THE  FOREGOING,  I  have  set  my  hand  and official seal at in 

the State and County aforesaid on this __________ day of ___________, 2015. 
 
 
     _________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 
     My Commission Expires: ____________________ 

 
 
 
 

162 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082187.2 1574-0702400 } 11 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

SECTION I., “SCOPE OF WORK,” RFP 2015- 
 

 

163 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 1 

 
 

 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
 
 

DATE:  JULY __25, 20112015     RFP NO.  20112015-___006 
 
 
ALL INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 

The Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, hereinafter referred to as the “TOWN”, will 
receive sealed Responses at the office of the Town Office at 155 “F” Road14579 
Southern Boulevard, Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida  33470 for the services 
described below: 

 
TOWN MANAGEMENT SERVICES  

 
Sealed Responses must be received and time stamped in by the Town Clerk’s Office, 
either by mail or hand delivery, no later than 2:00 p.m. local time on 
THURSDAYTUESDAY, AUGUST 6, 201523, 2011.  Any Responses received after 
2:00 p.m. local time on said date will not be accepted under any circumstances.  Any 
uncertainty regarding the time a Response is received will be resolved against the 
Offeror. 
 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves Ordinance 2008-09 (Ordinance) governing the Town’s 
purchasing and procurement requirements.  All Responders shall be expected to be 
familiar with the terms and conditions of this ordinance, which is incorporated herein.  To 
the extent of a conflict between the terms of this RFP and the Ordinance, the Ordinance 
shall prevail.    

 
TOWN reserves the right to reject any or all Responses, to waive any informalities or 
irregularities in any Responses received, to re-advertise for Responses, to award in whole 
or in part to one or more offerors, or take any other such actions that may be deemed to 
be in the best interests of the TOWN. 

 
 
Ann HarperJanet Whipple 
Town Clerk, Loxahatchee Groves 

 
 
 

164 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 2 

 
I.  SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Request for Proposal (RFP) for Town Management Services 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves is requesting responses from firms and individuals 
(“Respondents”) to provide Town Management services for the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.  
The scope of services includes all services as outlined in this Request for Proposal. 
 
TOWN MANAGER: 
 

Qualifications for Town Manager as directed by the Town Charter: 
1) The Town Manager shall have the minimum qualifications of a combination of a 

bachelor’s degree in public administration, business administration, or other related fields 
from an accredited college or university and 3 years’ public administration experience or 
6 years’ experience in a city manager or assistant city manager position, preferably in an 
International City/ County Management Association-recognized local government. 

2)  It is preferred that the Town Manager be an International City/County Management 
Association-credentialed manager or obtain such credential within 2 years after being 
appointed. 

3) The Town Manager will not be an employee of the Town.  All Town Management 
Services will be through a Contract for Town Management Services with the Town 
Council. 

4) The Town Manager shall have completed the National Incident Management System-
Federal Emergency Management Agency (NIMS-FEMA) courses ISO 100 and ISO 700.   

 

Town Charter Description of Duties for Town Manager:  
1) As the chief administrative officer, the Town Manager shall: 

a. Direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices, and agencies 
of the town, except the office of town attorney, and except as otherwise provided 
by this charter or by law. 

b. Appoint, suspend, or remove any employee of the town or appointive 
administrative officer provided for, by, or under this charter, except the office of 
town attorney, and except as may otherwise be provided by law, this charter, or 
personnel rules adopted pursuant to the charter. The Town Manager may 
authorize any administrative officer who is subject to his or her direction and 
supervision to exercise these powers with respect to subordinates in that officer’s 
department, office, or agency.  

c. Ensure that all laws, provisions of this charter, Town's Vision and acts of the 
council are faithfully executed.  

d. Prepare and submit the annual budget and capital program to the council in the 
form prescribed by ordinance. 

e. Attend meetings of the town council.  
f. Draw and sign vouchers upon depositories as provided by ordinance and keep, or 

cause to be kept, a true and accurate account of same.  
g. Sign all licenses issued by the town, issue receipts for all moneys paid to the 

Town of Loxahatchee Groves Management Team, and deposit such  moneys in 
the proper depositories on the first banking day after receipt. 

h. Provide administrative services in support of the official duties of the mayor and 
the council. 

i. Keep the council advised as to the financial condition and future needs of the 
town and make recommendations to the council concerning the affairs of the 
town. 

165 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 3 

j. Sign contracts pursuant to and consistent with the authority provided by the 
Town’s Charter and Ordinances. 

k. Provide administrative and staff support to all advisory committees, and boards, 
formed and appointed by the Town Council. 

l. Submit to the council, and make available to the public, the Town Management 
report on finances and administrative activities of the Town as of the end of June 
of each fiscal year.  This Town Management Report will be part of the annual 
evaluation process by the Town Council. 

m. Perform such other duties as are specified in this charter or as may be required 
by the council. 

Town Manager Operational Responsibilities: 
1) Meetings 

a. Prepares all regular, special, intergovernmental coordination and workshop 
meeting agendas with the Town Attorney. 

b. Coordinates all special meetings and workshops (location, preparation and legal 
advertising) 

b.c. Coordinate all meetings, including preparing agendas for, all Town board and 
committees  

2) Contract Manager 
a. Monitors all independent contractors on specific projects and on-going 

contractual agreements on behalf of the Town. Ensures proper compliance with 
the contract’s terms and conditions. 

b. Monitors all contracts to ensure adherence to contractual obligations and report to 
Town Council when contract is not being fulfilled.  Corrective measures will be 
recommended to the Town Council and enforced.   

c. Will make recommendations on any contracts should the contractual relationship 
change or the needs of the Town change. 

d. Serves as Contract Administrator on behalf of the Town for the Solid Waste 
Services Agreement between the Town and the Town’s solid waste collection 
contractor, which at the time of this RFP is Waste Pro. Also, serves as the liaison 
between the residents and Waste Pro to assist and help resolve customer 
complaints.  

e. Serves as direct liaison between the Town and Palm Beach County Sheriff’s 
Office. Responsible for additional enforcement for speed enforcement and other 
matters directed by the Town Council.  

f. Oversees grant applications on behalf of the Town, including but not limited to, 
the oversight of application preparation and follow-up and, in the case of granted 
obtained, the maintenance of the records, the providing of required reports to 
grant providers and auditors, and compliance with the terms of the grant. 

g. Coordinates with the Town Council, Town Attorney and the Town Finance and 
audit Advisory Committee to competitively bid for services and capital 
improvements consistent with state and county laws, and the Town’s procurement 
Ordinance.  The Town Manager shall negotiate contracts with selected vendors 
with terms and conditions in the best interest of the Town.  The Town Manager 
will also review draft agreements with the Town’s Finance and Audit Advisory 
Committee and Town Attorney as part of the final contract recommendations to 
the Town Council. 

h. Ensure the Town’s Compliance with the requirements of the Palm Beach County 
Office of Inspector General (OIG) Ordinance, including providing the OIG notice 
of all meetings where procurement is being scheduled to be discussed, responding 
to OIG inquiries, and providing information as may be requested from time to 

166 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 4 

time by the OIG.  The Town Manager should also use the resources of the OIG 
should he or she is concerned about possible violations of the OIG ordinance by 
Town vendors and contractors.   

3) Planning, Zoning, Building Matters 
a. The Town has adopted its own land development code.  The Town Manager is 

responsible administrating planning and zoning activities pursuant to the Town’s 
land development regulation. Should such be done on a contractual basis with 
another entity, the Town Manager shall manage and oversee that contract.    

b. Liaison with Palm Beach County as to any agreements with the County on 
planning matters 

c. Should a land planning firm be contracted by the Town Council to handle all 
these matters on behalf of the Town, the Town Manager will manage and oversee 
the firm or individual that is retained to handle all Planning, Zoning, Building and 
Environmental Regulation matters on behalf of the Town.  

4) Emergency Management (coordination during an emergency/disaster) 
a. Serves as the manager of the Town's Emergency Operations Center and performs 

all duties as outlined in the Town's Emergency Operations Procedure Manual.  
The Town Manager will be expected to be present within the Town during an 
emergency in order to coordinate emergency responses and services unless 
prohibited by law or orders of government agencies in which case the Town 
Manager should be located in as close proximity as he or she is safely able. 

b. Liaison with the Loxahatchee Groves CERT. 
c. Liaison with the LGWCD (Town’s EOC) 
d. Serves as Manager for the Town's Point of Dispensing (POD) should the Strategic 

National Stockpile activate to protect public health for Palm Beach County.  
e. Liaison with PBC EOC (attends Emergency Management Meetings) 
f. Liaison with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and State of 

Florida Division of Emergency Management (FDEM) 
g. Manages and oversees the Town’s Disaster Debris Removal Firms 
h. Manages and oversees the Town’s Disaster Debris Removal Monitoring 

Contractor  
i. Liaison with Palm Beach County Solid Waste Authority 
j. Oversees any Town action and/or responses relating to post-event review by 

FEMA or FDEM 
k. Ensures all contractors comply with FEMA requirements, and is responsible for 

submitting invoices to FEMA with accompanying documentation as required for 
reimbursement.   

l. Keep Town Council informed of all these activities. 
m. Coordinates with the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office, which provides law 

enforcement services to the Town, and Palm Beach County Fire Rescue which 
provides fire rescue and emergency medical services to the Town. 

n. Liaison with the Florida Division of Forestry.   
5)  Code Enforcement 

a. Manages the Town's Code Enforcement Officers 
b. Coordinates and prepares all necessary material, case files, and agendas for Code 

Enforcement Special Magistrate.  Executes all Special Magistrate Orders. 
c. Provides reports to the Council on Code Enforcement matters on a schedule 

determined by the Council. 
6) Financial 

a. Annual Budget 

Comment [g1]: “A” AND “C” CAN BE 
COMBINED 

Comment [g2]: Comment from notes received 
Re:  FAAC meeting 

167 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 5 

i. Present the draft Budget to the Financial Advisory and Audit Committee 
with explanations of basis for each major line item and budget forecast. 
Obtain the Committee’s input before recommending to the Town Council. 

ii. Research, prepare and present annual budget for approval 
iii. Research and propose millage rate necessary to fund the operations of the 

Town, consistent with state law. 
iv. Meet with Town Council members and Town Attorney to finalize budget. 
v. Schedule and legally advertise budget hearings (coordinate with PBC 

Property Appraiser's Office; Dino Maniotis) 
vi. Non-Ad Valorem Assessment Preparation:  

1. Update NAV database 
2. Transmit to PBC Tax Collector's Office 

vii. Coordinate with the Town Attorney on the budget and special assessment 
schedule of hearings, and required notices.   

b. Annually review and update database and other information for: 
i. Property valuations and necessary millage rates 

ii. State of Florida 1/2 cent sales tax 
iii. State of Florida Local Option Gas Taxes (5 cent and 6 cent) 
iv. State of Florida Communications Service Tax 
v. State of Florida Revenue Sharing 

vi. Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department Franchise Fee 
vii. FPL Public Utility Tax and Franchise Fee 

viii. All other revenue sources 
c. Procurement:  

i. Purchasing Agent for Town 
ii. Develop and adhere to the Town’s Procurement Procedures Manual and 

the Town’s Procurement Ordinance. 
iii. Comply with Palm Beach County OIG requirements 

d. Oversees Financial Manager's daily, monthly and yearly activities 
e. Coordinates financial activities with the Town's Finance and Audit Advisory 

Committee as directed by the Town Council.  Provides administrative support to 
the Town’s Finance Advisory and Audit Committee in the selection and 
recommendations of an external auditor. 

7) Town Clerk:  Manages Town Clerk's daily, monthly and yearly activities 
8) Communication with residents and landowners: 

a. Maintains all design and content and keeps current the Town's official website. 
b. Creates, edits and produces monthly newsletters and all flyers for special 

meetings, workshops and events. 
c. Provide information on resident and property owner inquiries to Town Council as 

may be requested. 
9) Water Control District: 

a. Work cooperatively with the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 
including with its Administrator, and as may be directed by the Town Council. 

b. Attend the Intergovernmental Coordination Committee meetings between the 
Town and the Water Control District 

10) Technology: 
a. Maintains and keeps current all software. 

 
Note:  The Town’s current software is as follows: 
 

Windows operating system 

168 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 6 

Microsoft Office & Microsoft Works 
Outlook Express for email 
Adobe and Nuance PDF programs 
Goldwave for audios 
Picasa 3 for photos 
Olympus programs for audio & photos as well 
Carbonite for off-site cyber storage (backs up each night) 
Blackbaud SaaS 
 

 
b. Maintains and keeps current all computer hardware 

 
Note:  The Town’s current hardware is as follows: 
 

1 Toshiba Laptop 
1 HP Laptop 
1 Compaq Desktop 
(1 spare HP Laptop) 
1 HP desktop color printer 
1 HP desktop color printer/scanner/fax 
1 commercial Gestetner printer/scanner 
1 Dymo Label maker 

 
c. Maintains an official on-site and off-site backup of all information stored on the 

Town's computer.  
 

Note:  The Town currently backs up its data onsite. 
 

11) Meetings attended by the Town Manager: The Town Manager is expected to attend all 
meetings of Town committees and boards, as well as government agencies and 
associations.  For the Fiscal Year 20112015-20162012, the meetings are: 

a. Town Council regular and special meetings and workshops 
b. Town Finance and Audit Advisory Committee 
c. Town Roadway, Equestrian Trials and Greenway Advisory Committee 
d. Town Planning and Zoning Board 
e. Palm Beach County League of Cities 
f. Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) 
g. Intergovernmental Coordinating Committee (Voting Member) 
h. Palms West Chamber of Commerce  
i. Palms West Economic Development Task Force (Voting Member) 
j. Western Communities Council 
k. Palm Beach County Emergency Management Meeting (Mandatory*) (For 

Hurricane and Disaster Preparations; all public & private entities) 
l. PBC Emergency Management-LMS (Mandatory*) 
m. PBC Emergency Management-Municipalities Only (Mandatory*) 
n. PBC Emergency Management- EM TEAM (Mandatory*)(Note:*Mandatory 

means being NIMS Compliant for FEMA funding)  
o. Palm Beach County Solid Waste Authority (Town issues only)  

Comment [g3]: Verify and Update to current list 

Comment [g4]: Verify and Update 

Comment [g5]: Update and Verify 

Comment [mdc6]: Update and confirm 

169 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 7 

p. Palm Beach County Water Utility Department (Town issues only)  
q. South Florida Water Management District (Town issues only)  
r. FDOT-SR-80 Southern Blvd. expansion project. 

12) Town Office.  Staff the Town Offices to be open Monday through Friday from 9:00 am 
to 4:00 pm, except government holidays as approved by the Council.   
 

 
 
Summary of Primary Weekly Town Manager Operational Tasks:  
 
 Town Council and Committee Meetings: The Town Council conducts two regular meetings 
a month.  The Town also has the following boards and committees: 
 
Financial Advisory and Audit Committee 
Roadway, Equestrian Trails and Greenway Advisory Committee  
Planning and Zoning Board 
 
For these meetings, the Town Management shall: 
 

• Town Council, Committee and Board meetings:  Provide staff as part of the contracted 
services to take minutes and perform the duties of Town Clerk during the actual meetings 
(roll call and direction on agenda items). These minutes need to be transcribed and 
formatted to the Town Council, or the respective committee or board, within 2 weeks. 
The corrections need to be followed up as well. Once the documents are approved, they 
need to be certified, scanned to be put on the website then filed in the appropriate 
location.  

• Agenda Packets.  Provide staff as part of the contracted services to coordinate all backup 
material and research in order to construct the agenda packets. For Town Council 
meetings, an agenda memo needs to be written for each item with specific information so 
that the Town Council can be armed with the tools to make informed decisions. These 
packets need to be produced and assembled for distribution on the Wednesday before 
each meeting.  

• Establish, approve, and post agendas.  This needs to be finalized no later than the 
Wednesday before each meeting. Once finalized, the agenda and backup needs to be 
posted on the web, available at the Town Office, and sent to the media, Town Council 
and Town Attorney.  

 
 Legal Notices: All legal notices need to be drafted, posted, and advertised in a timely fashion 
in accordance with the Town’s charter and Florida State Statutes for all meetings, hearings and 
ordinances.  
 
 Coordination with Town Attorney’s Office: Coordinate matters with the Town Attorney’s 
Office on an as needed basis.  
 
 Monthly Task Plan: After each Town Council meeting, a task plan needs to be created by 
using the bullet points created from the Town recordings. This task list is then divided up 
between the Town Manager and Town Attorney. This list needs to be managed throughout the 
month so that all of the tasks are completed in time as scheduled by the Council. (The list is 

170 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 8 

created and distributed to members of the Town Council within 24 hours of the completion of the 
Town Council meeting)  
 
 
TOWN CLERK (as detailed in the Town Charter):  
(5) TOWN CLERK.—The town manager shall appoint a town clerk or management firm to 
serve as town clerk (the “clerk”). The clerk shall give notice of council meetings to its members 
and the public, keep minutes of its proceedings, and perform such other duties as the council or 
town manager may prescribe from time to time. The clerk shall report to the town manager.  
 
The Town Clerk Function is part of the contracted services. 
 
TOWN CLERK OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES:  
 

o Administers records management and election procedures in accordance with State 
Statutes and Town Charter and Code of Ordinances;  attends Town Council meetings and 
prepares minutes;  

o Acts as the Town election official and coordinates all activities relating to the Election 
Process for all elections, and serves as a member of the Town’s canvassing board. 

o Maintains Town records and provides records and documents to the public and staff; 
interprets State, County and Town rules and regulations for records management and 
election procedures; ensures all Town documents are processed pursuant to legal 
procedures; interprets state and Town laws, rules, and regulations regarding the functions 
of the office.  

o Prepare Council Agenda for Regular Meetings, Special Meetings, Workshops and 
Committee Meeting Packets  

o Town Clerk or Town Staff Designee shall attend all Town Council Regular Meetings, 
Special Meetings, Workshops and Committee and Board Meetings to record and 
transcribe the minutes.  

o Prepares and finalizes meeting minutes for Town Council approval 
o Prepared and finalized minutes for Committee and Board meetings  
o Index final adopted version of the minutes of Council meetings. 
o Records all meetings and uploads to the Town's website  
o Index ordinances and resolutions  
o Maintain index of agreements/contracts between Town and various entities or 

individuals. 
o Answer telephone, correspondence and citizen inquiries, including those regarding Town 

records or ordinances.  
o Prepare proclamations and certificates.  
o Prepare and transmit deeds to the Clerk of Court for recording in the public records of 

Palm Beach County.  
o Prepare legal notices and advertisements as required Florida State Statutes  

 
 

Note:  The Town will provide audio and video equipment for recording Town meetings. 
 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
Financial Management is part of the contracted services. 
 

Formatted: Not Highlight

171 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 9 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT OPERATIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES:  
 

o Follows all statutory requirements in maintaining the proper municipal accounting and 
financial systems necessary for proper reporting and auditing. Provides professional 
advice to Town Council.  

o Oversees the posting and reconciliation of ledgers and accounts.  
o Forecasts, estimates, and monitors the financial condition of the Town to assure the fiscal 

well being of the Town.  
o Prepares annual department budget requests for submission to the Town Manager.  
o Directs the preparation of state and federal financial reports.  
o Maintains accounting and budgetary procedures in accordance with the Town’s 

Accounting Policy and Procedures Manual, a copy of which is available through the 
Town Clerk’s office.  

o Prepares monthly and annual reports of financial activities, consistent with or equivalent 
to the Town’s current format, an example of which is attached hereto. 

o The Financial Manager shall review and approve the monthly and annual reports prior to 
their presentation to the Financial Advisory and Audit Committee and Town Council.  

o Processes all invoices and payments  
o Manages all investments and operating bank accounts  
o Prepare and transmit all information necessary for yearly audit  

 
Special Notes: 
 

1. The Town has recently purchased and is in the process of implementing Blackbaud SaaS.   
It is mandatory that the selected Town Management firm use this software, including 
participating in training.  The Town of Loxahatchee Groves shall be responsible for the 
costs of implementation and training, as well as the monthly fees and upgrades for he 
software.  There are no electronic interfaces currently in place to other internal or 
external systems for the financial software.  use an accounting software that specializes 
in Municipal Government Accounting 

1.2. Electronic copies of the Town’s current FY 2014-2015 Budget is available on the Town’s 
website.  The proposed FY 2015-2016 budget information is scheduled for the July 21, 
2015, Town Council meeting. 

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
Included with this package is the proposed Professional Services Agreement that the selected 
Responder will be expected to execute, with non-substantive changes to reflect information 
specific to the selected Responder.  Any issues, questions or concerns must be submitted by the 
deadline for submittal of written questions to Town Attorney. The Exhibit “A” to the 
Professional Services Agreement will be Section I, “Scope of Work” of this Request for 
Proposals.  
 
The Palm Beach County Inspector General Ordinance, set forth in Article XII of the Palm Beach 
County Code, is applicable to the Town.  Sections 2-429 and 2-439.1 of the Palm Beach County 
Inspector General Ordinance requires the Town to pay to the Office of the Inspector General 
(OIG) as its proportionate share of the OIG costs 0.25% ($25 for every $10000) of certain 
contract expenses.  Responders will be responsible, through the Contract for Town Management 
Services, for this cost, and should include such in the cost proposal of a Response to this RFP.   
 
 

Comment [g7]: Verify 

172 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 10 

REVIEW OF CONTRACT FOR TOWN MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
Performance Criteria and Evaluation:  The Contract for Town Management Services shall be 
reviewed annually.  This annual review will be comprised of performance and evaluation criteria 
established and managed by the Town Council based upon the duties contained in the Contract 
for Town Management Services along with the Town Management Report through June of the 
current year prepared by the Town Manager.  This annual review of the Contract for Town 
Management Services shall occur no later than August 1 of each year.  The Town Manager is 
responsible for placing this annual review on a Town Council agenda.   
 
 
 

II. TIME REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. PROPOSAL CALENDAR  
 
The schedule of events, relative to the procurement shall be as follows: 

   
  Event      Date (on or by) 
 1. Issuance of Request for Proposal  Friday, July 10, 2015Monday, July 
25, 2011 
 
 2. Deadline for submittal of written questions 
   to Town Attorney:     Monday, July 27, 2015Tuesday, 
August 16, 2011 
  3. Responses to Questions from Town Attorney: Friday, July 31, 2015 
 
 42. Responses Due   (2:00 p.m.)     Thursday, August 6, 2015 Tuesday, 
August 23, 2011 
  
 53. Short List of Submittals by Town Council  
  (If necessary, see note below):   Wednesday, August 12, 2015Monday, 
August 29, 2011* 
 
 64. Short List Presentations to Town Council        
  & selection of highest ranked proposeraward of contract (7:00 p.m.) Tuesday, 
August 18, 2015.8September 6, 2011 
 
 7. Resolution approving Agreement and 
  Appointing Town Manager   Tuesday, September 1, 2015. 
 
*   In the event the Town receives less than seven (7) proposals, there will be no shortlisting, 

the August 12, 201529, 2011 meeting will be cancelled, and all Responders will be expected to 
make presentations on August 18, 2015September 6, 2011.    
 
** Pursuant to Sections 119.071(1)(b) and 286.0113, Florida StatutesChapter 2011-140, Laws 
of Florida, portions of meetings where responders in a competitive selection process are making oral 
presentations to a selection committee are exempt from Florida public meeting laws.  As a result, 
Responders will not be permitted in the room while other Responders make their presentations to 
the Town Council.  
  

173 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 11 

 TOWN reserves the right to change and/or delay scheduled dates. 
 
B. ANTICIPATED COMMENCEMENT OF CONTRACT 
 

ThursdaySaturday, October 1, 20112015. 
 

III.  REQUIREMENTS FOR RESPONSES 
 
 A. SUBMISSION OF RESPONSES 
 

 The following materials should be submitted by a Respondent to be considered: 

1. An original copy (so marked) of the Proposal, seven (7) copies and an one (1) 
electronic version should be submitted to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, 155 
F Road14579 Southern Blvd, Suite 2, Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470 to the 
attention of Janet WhippleAnn Harper, Town Clerk.   

2. Responses must be submitted in a sealed envelope clearly marked with the name 
of the firm/consultant “Request for Proposal RFP 20112015-___006, Contract 
for Town Management Services.” 

 

 
 
B.      REQUIRED INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED IN RESPONSES 
 

1. Cover Letter: (not to exceed four pages) 
2. Respondent Background:  Describe the Respondent’s historical 

background relative to the requirements of the RFP (can be submitted in 
the form of a resume).  Should include description of experience working 
with special districts and coordinating with other governmental entities.  

3. Methodology and Approach to the overall operation of the Town 
Management office to include a detailed response to achieving all of the 
tasks outlined in the RFP. 

4. Fees:  Provide a rate schedule and total monthly / annual fee for proposal, 
for the initial three (3) year term, including outlining whether the fee is 
fixed for the initial three (3) year term and if not how annual adjustments 
in the fee will be determined,   

5. References:  The proposer should list a minimum of three (3) verifiable 
references. 

6. Subcontracting.  In the event Responder intends to provide any of the 
services required by this RFP through subcontractors, please specifically 
identify the services to be contracted out, and the intended subcontractors.  
Responder must clearly identify which subcontracting costs are included in 
your proposed fee, and which would be in addition to the proposed fee.  

6.7. “Disclosure For Business Screening Regarding Procurement of Consumer 
Report.” (Disclosure Form) All Responders must submit this fully 
completed form with a Response to the RFP.  All information must be 
included, even if such is exempt from Florida’s public records laws.  The 
Town will be take steps necessary to secure such exempt information if 
need be.  The failure to do so will render the RFP non-responsive.   

7.8. Appendices: 

Comment [g8]: If Town wants transition period, 
consider earlier effective date for contract, but not of 
start for new manager.   

174 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 12 

a. Offeror's Certification 
b. Non-Collusive Affidavit 
c. Acknowledgement 
d. Disclosure Form 
c.e. Form of Professional Services Agreement  

 
IV. EVALUATION OF RESPONSES 

 
A. Evaluation Method and Criteria 
 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves Town Council will evaluate responses submitted.  The Town 
Council, in its sole discretion, has the right to reject any and all responses or waive any minor 
irregularity or technicality in any responses received.   
 
The Town of Loxahatchee Groves will select/award the Respondent which best meets the 
interests of the Town, all factors considered.   
 
Although price is a factor in the decision, the experience, background and proposed plan for 
operations as Town Manager is the main factor in the Town Council’s decision.  The Town 
Council shall be the sole judge of the Town’s best interests, the responses, and the resulting 
negotiated agreement.  The decision of the Town Council shall be final. 

 
VI.  AWARD OF CONTRACT 

 
The Town Council shall direct the Town Attorney to negotiate a Contract for Town Management 
Services with the Responder whose response is determined to be the most advantageous to the 
Town, taking into consideration the evaluation factors and criteria set forth in the Request for 
Proposals.  The Council reserves the right to enter into a Contract for Town Management 
Services with the selected responder for all or a portion of the services that are part of this 
Request for Proposal. 
 
 
 

VIII.  GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

A. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES INFORMATION STATEMENT:  A person or Affiliate 
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a Public Entity 
Crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, 
may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity, may 
not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplies, subcontractor, or consultant under a 
contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of 
the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 
months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 
 
 
B.   DISCRIMINATORY VENDOR LIST:  An entity or affiliate who has been placed on 
the discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid on a contract to provide goods or services to 
a public entity, may not submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or 
repair of a public building or public work, may not submit bids on leases of real property to a 
public entity, may not award or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or 

175 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 13 

consultant under contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public 
entity. 
 
C. ADDENDA AND INTERPRETATIONS:  No interpretations of the meaning of the 
specifications or other contract documents will be made orally to any Responder. Responders 
must request from the CityTown Attorney such interpretation in writing. To be considered, such 
request must be received by the deadline for submittal of written questions to the Town 
Attorneyat least seven (7) days prior to the date fixed for the deadline for submittal of the 
Proposals.  Any and all interpretations and any supplemental instructions will be in the form of a 
written addenda which, if issued, will be sent to all potential Responders who have provided the 
Town with their contact information as having an interest in the RFP at the address furnished for 
such purpose not later than two (2) days prior to the date fixed as the deadline for submittal of 
proposals. Responses or Addenda may be issued via electronic mail as well.  Failure of any 
Responder to receive any such addenda or interpretation shall not relieve any Responder from 
any obligation under the proposal as submitted. All addenda so issued shall become a part of the 
contract document.  Responder shall verify that it has all addenda before submitting a Proposal. 

 
D. QUESTIONS ABOUT THE RFP:  Questions regarding the RFP, or the proposal 
process, or the terms of the form of Professional Services Agreement, shall be directed in writing 
to the Town Attorney:  Michael Cirullo, Goren, Cherof, Doody and Ezrol, PA, 3099 East 
Commercial Blvd. Suite 200, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308, by fax at 954-771-4923, or electronic 
mail at mcirullo@cityatty.com.  Responders are responsible for confirming timely receipt by the 
Town Attorney of any questions submitted by Responders.  
 
E. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  The Responder must represent that it has no interest, and 
shall not acquire such interest, financial or otherwise, direct or indirect, nor engage in any 
business transaction or professional activity or incur any obligation of any nature which would 
conflict in any manner with the performance of scope of service required hereunder.   
 

Without receiving prior written authorization by the Town, the Respondent shall not:  
(i) retain any individual or company with whom the Respondent or any individual 

member thereof has a financial or other conflict of interest; nor  
(ii) in fulfillment of the Contract for Town Management Services, do business 

with a for-profit entity in which the Respondent or any individual member has 
a financial or other interest therein. 

 
The Respondent warrants to the Town that no gifts or gratuities have been or will be given to any 
Town employee or agent, either directly or indirectly, to obtain the Contract for Town 
Management Services. 
 
F. NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA).  The 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves will not discriminate against qualified individuals with disabilities 
on the basis of disability in the Town’s services, programs, or activities. The Town will 
generally, upon request, provide appropriate aids and services leading to effective 
communication for qualified persons with disabilities so they can participate equally in the 
Town's programs, services, and activities, The Town will make all reasonable modifications to 
policies and programs to ensure that people with disabilities have an equal opportunity to enjoy 
all Town programs, services, and activities. A person with a disability may receive an auxiliary 
aid or service to effectively participate in town government activities by contacting the Town 
Clerk’s Office at voice (561) 793-2420 as soon as possible but no later than 48 hours before the 
event or deadline date. 

176 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mcirullo@cityatty.com


 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 14 

 
IX.  INSURANCE 

 
After award and prior to the execution of the Contract for Town Management Services, the 
successful Responder shall provide proof of insurance as required herein.  Responder The 
Responder shall procure and maintain, at its own expense, the following insurance 

 (i) Errors & Omissions Coverage for Directors and Officers with a 
 $1,000,000 limit 

(ii) Worker’s Compensation Insurance for all Responder’s employees, 
with the following limits: 

 
    A. Worker's Compensation Statutory Limits 
    B. Employer’s Liability      $500,000 each accident 
             $500,000 Disease-policy limit 
             $500,000 Disease-each employee 
 
If Responder is or claims to be exempt from all or a portion of these requirements, Respondent 
shall provide Town proof of such exemption. However, any exemption is at the sole discretion of 
the Town Council. 

(iii) Comprehensive Auto Liability coverage which shall include 
owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, with the following limits: 

A. Bodily Injury 

  1.Each Occurrence   $100,000 

  2.Annual Aggregate   $500,000 

B. Property Damage 

  1.Each Occurrence   $100,000 

  2.Annual Aggregate   $500,000 

(iv) A Dishonesty Bond or its equivalent, as shall be determined to be 
necessary by the Town, in an amount equal to $1,000,000.00 with 
a deductible of no more than $5,000.00. 

All insurance and bonds shall be kept in effect during the full term of the Contract for Town 
Management Services.  Additionally, any subcontractor hired by the Respondent for any services 
under the Contract for Town Management Services shall provide insurance coverage as well.   
 

Responder shall name the Town as an additional insured on each of the policies required herein, 
and provide a certificate of insurance to the Town evidencing such coverages. 
 
 

X.  TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
Subject to the termination provisions set forth hereinafter, the initial term of the Contract for 
Town Management Services shall be three (3) years, commencing on or about October 1, Comment [g9]: Do you want an earlier start date 

for transition? 

177 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 15 

20112015.  The Contract for Town Management Services may be renewed for two (2) additional 
one (1) year terms upon the agreement of the parties.   
 
The Town may terminate the Term of the Contract for Town Management Services at any time, 
without regard to any breach hereof by Responder and without any liability or obligation to 
Responder only upon sixty (60) days prior written notice.  Responder may terminate the Term of 
the Contract for Town Management Services at any time, without regard to any breach hereof by 
the Town and without any liability or obligation to the Town, only upon one hundred twenty 
(120) days prior written notice to the Mayor of the Town and the Town Council.  The rights and 
obligations of the Town and Responder that arise prior to expiration of the Term, including the 
Town’s obligation to pay to Responder any earned and unpaid portion of the Fee, shall survive 
any termination or expiration of the Term of the Contract for Town Management Services.   
 

XI.  LEGAL ENTITY FOR CONTRACTING 
 
In the event an individual is awarded the Contract for Town Management Services, he or she 
must form a legal business entity registered to do business in the State of Florida in order to enter 
into a Contract for Town Management Services.  The Town Council will enter into the Contract 
for Town Management Services only with that entity.   
 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

178 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 16 

 
OFFEROR'S CERTIFICATION 

 
WHEN OFFEROR IS AN INDIVIDUAL 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Offeror hereto has executed this Proposal form this ______ day 
of _____________________, 200_15_. 
 

By:       
 Signature of Individual 

 
             
Witness      Printed Name of Individual 
 
             
 
             
Witness      Business Address 
 

      
Town/State/Zip 

 
      
Business Phone Number 

 
State of__________________ 
 
County of ________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this            day of _______________, 
200__, by ________________________(Name),  who is personally known to me or who has 
produced                                                        as identification and who did (did not) take an oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, 
or type as Counciled) 
 
 

179 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 17 

 
OFFEROR'S CERTIFICATION 

 
WHEN OFFEROR IS A SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP OR OPERATES UNDER A 

FICTITIOUS OR TRADE NAME 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Offeror hereto has executed this Proposal Form this ______ day 
of _______________________, 20150__. 
 

        
Printed Name of Firm/consultant 
 
By:        
Signature of Owner 
 

              
Witness     Printed Name of Individual 
 
              
Witness     Business Address 

 
        
Town/State/Zip 
        
Business Phone Number 

 
State of__________________ 
 
County of ________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of    ___________ , 
20112015   by_____________________________ (Name),  who is personally known to me or 
who has produced _________________________ as identification and who did (did not) take an 
oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, 
or type as Counciled) 
 
 

180 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 18 

OFFEROR'S CERTIFICATION 
 

WHEN OFFEROR IS A PARTNERSHIP 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Offeror hereto has executed this Proposal Form this                  
day of                         , 20150    . 
 

        
Printed Name of Partnership 

By:        
Signature of General or Managing Partner 

 
              
Witness      Printed Name of partner 
 
              
Witness      Business Address 

 
        

Town/State/Zip 
 
        
 Business Phone Number 
 
        
 State of Registration 

State of      ___________________ 
 
County of  ___________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this  _____ day of  ___________ , 
20112015, by _____________________________________(Name), 
____________________(Title) of _________________________ (Name of Company) who is 
personally known to me or who has produced as identification and who did (did not) take an 
oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
___________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, 
or type as Counciled) 

181 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 19 

 OFFEROR'S CERTIFICATION 
 

WHEN OFFEROR IS A CORPORATION 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Offeror hereto has executed this Proposal Form this __________ 
day of ___________________, 20150__. 

 
       
Printed Name of Corporation 
 
       
Printed State of Incorporation 

 
By:       
Signature of President or other authorized officer 
 

(CORPORATE SEAL)           
Printed Name of President or other authorized 
officer 
 

ATTEST:            
Address of Corporation 

By             
Secretary         Town/State/Zip 

        
Business Phone Number 

State of__________________ 
 
County of ________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____day of    ___________ , 
20112015, by _____________________(Name), ___________________(Title) of  
____________________                               (Company Name) on behalf of the corporation, who 
is personally known to me or who has produced _____________________ as identification and 
who did (did not) take an oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, 
or type as Counciled) 

182 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 20 

NON-COLLUSIVE AFFIDAVIT 
 
 
State of                              ) 

 )ss. 
County of                           ) 
 
                                                        being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1) He/she is the                                                                      , (Owner, Partner, Officer, 

Representative or Agent) of                                                                   the Bidder that has 
submitted the attached Bid; 

 
(2) He/she is fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached Bid and 

of all pertinent circumstances respecting such Bid; 
 
(3) Such Bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham Bid; 
 
(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, owners, agents, representatives, 

employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, have in any way colluded, 
conspired, connived or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, 
firm/consultant, or person to submit a collusive or sham Bid in connection with the Work 
for which the attached Bid has been submitted; or to refrain from bidding in connection 
with such Work; or have in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or 
collusion, or communication, or conference with any Bidder, firm/consultant, or person 
to fix the price or prices in the attached Bid or of any other Bidder, or to fix any 
overhead, profit, or cost elements of the Bid price or the Bid price of any other Bidder, or 
to secure trough any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any 
advantage against (Recipient), or any person interested in the proposed Work; 

 
(5) The price or prices quoted in the attached Bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by 

any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or 
any other of its agents, representatives, owners, employees or parties in interest, including 
this affiant. 

 
Signed, sealed and delivered 
in the presence of: 
 
__________________________     By:  _________________________________  
 
__________________________   __________________________________  

(Printed Name) 
 
  ___________________________________ 

 (Title) 
 
Dated: __________________________  
 
 
 
 

183 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 21 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
State of__________________ 
 
County of ________________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this            day of _______________, 
20150__, by ________________________(Name),  who is personally known to me or who has 
produced                                                        as identification and who did (did not) take an oath. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
___________________________________ 
(Name of Notary Public: Print, Stamp, 
or type as Counciled) 
 

184 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 22 

DISCLOSURE FOR BUSINESS SCREENING REGARDING PROCUREMENT  
OF CONSUMER REPORT.” (DISCLOSURE FORM) 

 

185 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 {00082990.1 1574-0702400 } 23 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

186 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



187 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



188 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



189 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



190 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



191 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



192 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



193 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



194 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



195 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



196 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



197 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



198 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



199 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



200 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



201 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



202 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Law Enforcement Agreement and Alternatives 

203 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EIGHTH ADDENDUM TO THE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT 
SHERIFF RIC L. BRADSHAW AND TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

 
 This Eighth Addendum to the Law Enforcement Service Agreement is made by and between 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves (hereinafter referred to as “Loxahatchee Groves”) located in Palm 
Beach County, and Ric L. Bradshaw, Sheriff of Palm Beach County, Florida (hereinafter referred 
to as “Sheriff”). Loxahatchee Groves and the Sheriff shall hereinafter be referred to as the 
“Parties.” 
 
     WHEREAS, the Parties executed a Law Enforcement Service Agreement effective October 
01, 2007, a First Addendum effective October 01, 2008, a Second Addendum effective October 
01, 2009, a Third Addendum effective October 01, 2010, a Fourth Addendum effective October 
01, 2011, a Fifth Addendum effective October 01, 2012, a Sixth Addendum effective October 
01, 2013, and a Seventh Addendum effective October 01, 2014, (the “Agreement”),by which the 
Sheriff agreed to perform law enforcement services; and 
 
     WHEREAS, the Parties wish to renew said Agreement for an additional twelve (12) months, 
effective October 01, 2015. 
 
     NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, it is agreed upon as follows: 
 

1. In accordance with Article 7, Section A. of the Law Enforcement Service Agreement, 
the Parties have agreed to renew the Agreement for an additional twelve (12) month 
term. The term of this renewal is October 01, 2015 through September 30, 2016.  

 
2. Article 6, Section A. of the Law Enforcement Service Agreement is amended as to the 

total amount due for law enforcement services as follows:  The total cost of personnel 
and equipment shall be $288,746.00. Monthly payments shall be $24,062.17. Last 
payment shall be $24,062.13. 

 
3. In all other respects and unless otherwise stated, the terms and conditions of the 

Agreement, which includes prior Addendums, shall continue unchanged and in full 
force and effect. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

204 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed the Addendum to this Agreement 
as of the last date all signatures below are affixed. 
 
 
 
PALM BEACH COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________       BY: __________________________ 
                  Ric L. Bradshaw                          
   
Title:              Sheriff                                                     Print Name: _____________________ 
 
                                                                                       Title: __________________________ 
   

 
Witness: __________________________          Witness: ______________________ 
               Daniel R. Smith, Major 

 
DATE:  ___________________      DATE:  __________________                

205 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 10.c. 

NEW BUSINESS 

ILA for Road Services 

206 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00082199.1 1574-0702400 } Page 1 of 5 
 

AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
FOR TOWN ROADS WITHIN THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES 
 

This AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
__________, 2015 (the “Effective Date”), by and between:   

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, a municipal 
corporation existing under the laws of the State of Florida, 
hereafter referred to as “TOWN,” 
 

and 
 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER CONTROL 
DISTRICT, an independent special district existing under the laws 
of the State of Florida, hereafter referred to as “DISTRICT,” (with 
the TOWN and DISTRICT each referred to as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties”). 

 
WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida, the powers of 

which are defined in the TOWN's Charter and State law; and  
 
WHEREAS, there are roads within the geographical boundaries of the TOWN under the 

maintenance and control of the TOWN, which have been designated by the TOWN as “Town 
Roads,” and are the responsibility of the TOWN; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN is in need of services, equipment and materials for additional 

services for Town Roads; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DISTRICT is currently providing road repair and grading services on 

Town Roads for the Town pursuant to an Agreement dated August 1, 2013 (Road Repair and 
Grading Agreement), and is capable of providing additional road maintenance services; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the TOWN Council and the DISTRICT Board of Supervisors have 

determined that this Agreement is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the 
residents within the TOWN. 

 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual terms, conditions, 

promises, covenants and payments hereafter set forth, DISTRICT and TOWN agree as follows: 
 
  
ARTICLE I - RECITALS 
 



{00082199.1 1574-0702400 } Page 2 of 5 
 

1.1 The foregoing recitations are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference.  All exhibits to this Agreement are hereby deemed a part hereof. 

 
ARTICLE 2 – ADDITIONAL TOWN ROAD MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 
2.1 Upon receipt of the written request from the TOWN, the DISTRICT will provide the 

TOWN with a cost estimate for the requested Town Road Maintenance Services that 
include ROAD WATERING, TRAFFIC SIGN INSTALLATION, MOWING AND 
HEDGING.  The DISTRICT will proceed with the Additional Town Road Maintenance 
Services only upon receipt of written confirmation from the TOWN directing the 
DISTRICT to proceed with exception the Town will provide all necessary street signage.  

 
 2.2    Additional Town Road Maintenance Services shall be performed under separate written 

work authorizations that will identify the scope of needed Additional Town Road 
Maintenance Services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the TOWN shall have no 
obligation to engage the services of DISTRICT for a specified number of times. 

 
2.3 DISTRICT will ensure that all equipment used is properly registered.  The TOWN 

reserves the right to verify this information.  DISTRICT further represents that it shall 
comply with all federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may 
be applicable to the operation of the equipment provided for gravel road grading services.  
All equipment must be appropriately equipped with a revolving or flashing amber light so 
drivers can locate equipment from a distance. 

 
2.4 DISTRICT assumes professional and technical responsibility for performance of its 

services to be provided hereunder in accordance with recognized professional standards 
of good construction and engineering practice.   

 
2.5 DISTRICT agrees that no subcontracting is permitted without the advance, written 

approval of the TOWN Manager. 
 
ARTICLE 3 – PAYMENT 

 
3.1 DISTRICT shall provide town road watering, mowing, or sign installation services upon 

the written request from the Town Manager or designee and upon completion of the 
requested Service, the DISTRICT will submit an invoice for actual costs for such 
Maintenance Services, which will include acceptable documentation to substantiate its 
costs.  Should the TOWN determine that the documentation for a particular Maintenance 
Service is incomplete, it shall request additional information from the DISTRICT within 
ten (10) working days of receipt of the original invoice. 

 
3.2 Payment shall be made accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act.   
 
 
ARTICLE 4 - TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
4.1 This Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced on the date it is executed by the last 

party to do so, and shall continue until terminated by either party upon thirty (30) days 
written notice provided to the other party, which termination may be for any or no reason.    



{00082199.1 1574-0702400 } Page 3 of 5 
 

 
4.5 Notice of termination shall be provided in accordance with the terms of the Road Repair 

and Grading Agreement.  
  
4.6 In the event this Agreement is terminated, any compensation payable by TOWN shall be 

withheld until all documents reasonably required are provided to TOWN.  In no event 
shall the TOWN be liable to DISTRICT for any additional compensation, other than that 
provided herein, or for any consequential or incidental damages. 

 
ARTICLE 5 – APPLICABILITY OF TERMS OF THE ROAD REPAIR AND GRADING 
AGREEMENT  
 
5.1 As the parties hereto have entered into a separate Road Repair and Grading Agreement 

that contains terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement, the parties agree that 
Articles 5 through 7 of that Agreement shall apply hereto to the extent that such do not 
conflict with this Agreement.  In the event of any such conflict, the terms of this 
Agreement shall prevail.    
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement 

between TOWN and DISTRICT on the respective dates under each signature: TOWN, signing 
by and through its __________ Mayor, authorized to execute same by Council action on the 
____ day of _____________, 2015 and the DISTRICT, signing by and through its Chairman, 
authorized to execute same by Board of Supervisor’s action on the ____ day of _____________, 
2015. 
 
 Executed by TOWN this ____________ day of _______________, 2015 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
a Florida Municipal Corporation 

ATTEST: 
By _____________________________ 

David Browning, Mayor 
__________________________      
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk       
 
    
[TOWN SEAL]     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

By_____________________________ 
       Michael D. Cirullo, Jr., Town Attorney 

 
 
Executed by DISTRICT this ____________ day of _______________, 2015 

 
 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES WATER 
CONTROL DISTRICT, an Independent 
Special District of the State of Florida 

ATTEST: 



{00082199.1 1574-0702400 } Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
By _____________________________ 
 David DeMarois, Chairman             
             

__________________________      
Secretary  

 
[DISTRICT SEAL]       

 



{00082199.1 1574-0702400 } Page 5 of 5 
 

EXHIBIT “A”  
 

LIST OF TOWN ROADS 
 

 

211 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Road Listing
January 2014

A Road From Okeechobee Blvd to North Rd 2.001
C Road - South From Collecting Canal Rd to Okeechobee Blvd 1.236
C Road - North From Okeechobee Blvd to North Rd 1.981
D Road - North From Okeechobee Blvd to North Rd 1.996
10TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B 0.081
11TH TERRACE BLOCK C 0.244
12TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.197
131ST TERRACE NORTH BLOCK F 0.147
13TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.166
140TH STREET NORTH CUT-THRU / SUNSPORT 0.100
147TH AVENUE NORTH BLOCK C 0.126
147TH DRIVE NORTH BLOCK C 0.115
148TH TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.339
14TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK E 0.257
152ND WAY NORTH BLOCK B 0.068
160TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.394
161ST TERRACE NORTH T: 43S / R: 40E 2.014
17TH ROAD NORTH BLOCK B 0.076
21ST ROAD NORTH BLOCK C 0.126
22ND COURT NORTH BLOCK F 0.292
22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.248
22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK E   (E ROAD) 0.156
22ND ROAD NORTH BLOCK F   (F ROAD) 0.210
23RD COURT NORTH BLOCK E 0.189
24TH CIRCLE NORTH BLOCK C 0.177
24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK C   (C ROAD) 0.282
24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (E ROAD) 0.194
24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK E   (WEST F) 0.250
24TH COURT NORTH BLOCK F   (EAST F) 0.406
25TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.136
27TH LANE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135
30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.141
30TH COURT NORTH BLOCK D   (D ROAD) 0.132
34TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.135
35TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK D 0.127
41ST ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.068
42ND ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.153
42ND STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.234
43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E   (GLOBAL) 0.194
43RD ROAD NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E 0.269
44TH STREET NORTH T: 43S / R: 41E (OFF 160TH) 0.235
8TH PLACE NORTH BLOCK C 0.319

Town Road Mileage Chart
2014

212 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town Road Listing
January 2014

APRIL DRIVE BLOCK C 0.164
BIDDIX ROAD BLOCK D 0.191
BRYAN ROAD BLOCK F 0.749
BUNNY LANE BLOCK C 0.244
CANAL MAINTENANCE RD T: 43S / R: 41E (40TH ST N) 1.462
(WILSON) CASEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.748
CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.243
COMPTON ROAD BLOCK F 0.748
EAST CITRUS DRIVE BLOCK K 0.501
EDITH ROAD BLOCK E 0.197
FARLEY ROAD BLOCK E 0.197
FERRIS LANE BLOCK A 0.194
FLAMINGO DRIVE BLOCK C 0.186
FOREST LANE BLOCK B 0.188
FORTNER DRIVE BLOCK B   (C ROAD) 0.135
FOX TRAIL BLOCK E 0.204
GLOBAL TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.519
GRUBER LANE BLOCK C 0.489
HYDE PARK ROAD BLOCK E 0.518
IAN TRAIL T: 43S / R: 41E 0.384
JEWEL LANE BLOCK B 0.103
KAZEE ROAD BLOCK G 0.432
KERRY LANE BLOCK E 0.260
LOS ANGELES DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244
LOXAHATCHEE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.180
MARCELLA BOULEVARD BLOCK F 0.749
MARCH CIRCLE BLOCK F 0.174
MORROW COURT BLOCK B 0.180
ORANGE AVENUE BLOCK K 0.075
PARADISE TRAIL BLOCK C 0.186
QUAIL ROAD BLOCK F 0.135
RACKLEY ROAD BLOCK F 0.146
RAYMOND DRIVE BLOCK F 0.337
ROBERTS WAY BLOCK B 0.229
SAN DIEGO DRIVE BLOCK B 0.244
SCOTTS PLACE BLOCK B 0.213
SNAIL TRAIL BLOCK C 0.244
TANGERINE DRIVE BLOCK K 0.510
TEMPLE DRIVE BLOCK I 0.100
TRIPP ROAD BLOCK D 0.242
VALENCIA DRIVE BLOCK K 0.136
WEST "B" ROAD BLOCK A 0.340
WEST "C" ROAD BLOCK B 0.623
WEST "D" ROAD BLOCK I   (SOUTH C.C.) 0.314
WEST 'D' ROAD BLOCK C   (NORTH C.C.) 0.388
WEST 'F' ROAD BLOCK E 0.198
WILLIAMS DRIVE BLOCK B 0.193

                                                           MILEAGE = 33.670

TOWN ROAD NAME PLAT DESIGNATION MILEAGE

213 of 213   TC Agenda Packet 07/07/2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                        

 

                                                                      

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY,  JULY 7, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 

ADDENDUM #1:  Addition under Council Reports: 

11.a.  Councilman Rockett would like a discussion on 
speed humps. 

  

 Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

 Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel (Seat 1) 

 Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

 Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

 Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 


	AGENDA
	2.a. Consent Agenda Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Consent Agenda Disaster Recovery Services
	5.a. Committee Reports - Financials Ending May FY 2015
	Ordinance No. 2015-04 - Elections
	Ordinance No. 2015-05 Moratorium Extension
	Ordinance No. 2015-06 - ULDC Changes
	Resolution No. 2015-20 - B Road Agreement
	Resolution No. 2015-21 - FAAC Board Appointment
	Manager's Report w PBC Fire Rescue Report
	9.a. Old Business - Forfeiture Hearing
	10.a. New Business - Manager's RFP
	10.b. New Business - 8th Amendment to Law Enforcement Agreement
	10.c. New Business - ILA for Road Maintenance Services



